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Whitehorse, Yukon
Tuesday, April 14, 1981

Mr. Speaker: I will now call the House to order.
We will proceed at this time with Prayers.
Prayers

DAILY ROUTINE

Mr. Speaker: Are there any Returns or Documents for
Tabling?

TABLING OF DOCUMENTS

Hon. Mrs. McCall: Mr. Speaker, I have for tabling a White
Paper entitled Pharmacare for Seniors. )

Mr. Speaker: Are there any Reports of Standing or Special
Committees?

REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

Myr. Graham: Mr. Speaker, I would like to present the 8th
Report of the Standing Committee on Rules, Elections and
Privileges.

Mr. Speaker: Petitions? o

Reading and Receiving of Petitions?

Are there any Bills for Introduction?

BILLS: INTRODUCTION & FIRST READING

Hon. Mr. Pearson: Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded by the
Honourable Minister of Tourism and Economic Development,
that a bill entitled An Ordinance to Amend the Yukon Council
Ordinance, be now introduced and read a first time.

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable Gov-
ernment Leader, seconded by the Honourable Minister of
Tourism and Economic Developement, that a bill entitled An

Ordinance to Amend the Yukon Council Ordinance be now .

introduced and read a first time.

Motion agreed to

Mr. Veale: Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded by the Honour-
able Member for Kluane, that a bill entitled the Court Order
Interest Ordinance, be now introduced and read a first time.

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable Leader
of the Opposition, seconded by the Honourable Member for
Kluane, that a bill entitled Court Order Interest Ordinance, be
now introduced and read a first time.

Motion agreed to

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further Bills?

Are there any Notices of Motion for the Production of
Papers?

. Notices of Motion?

NOTICE OF MOTION

Mr. Falle: Iwouldlike to give Notice of Motion, seconded by
the Member for Porter Creek West, that the Government of the
Yukon examine the question of assuming responsibility for the
Northern Inland Waters Act, as it applies to the Yukon.

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further Notices of Motion?

Are there any Statements by Ministers?

This brings us to the Question Period.

QUESTION PERIOD

Question re: Cabinet Ministers’ Business Trips

Mr. Veale: Mr. Speaker, I have a question for the Govern-
ment Leader regarding his tabling of answers to my written
question on government trips taken by Ministers. I am refer-
ring specifically to the February 20 to 27 trip to Toronto to the
RCMP/ Minister of Justice Conference. Would he indicate how
the time was allocated in his trip between the RCMP Confer-
ence, the meeting with Premier Davis, and the time spent at
the weekend convention of his Party in Ottawa?

Hon. Mr. Pearson: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I was in Toronto
from Monday until Thursday. In Toronto I met with Premier
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Davis on Thursday morning.

I went, at my own expense, from Toronto to Ottawa, and
returned back here to Whitehorse at my own expense after the
convention.

Mr.Veale: Justtoget aclarification of that, Mr. Speaker, is
the Government Leader indicating that the expense of $1,028
was simply his trip from the Yukon to Toronto, and did not
involve any return expenditures? In other words, the expense
has been divided equally between himself and the taxpayer.

Hon. Mr. Pearson: Yes, Mr. Speaker, that is correct. I, in
fact, was not anticipating being in eastern Canada, and was
anticipating having to pay all of the expenses myself. It was
necessary for me to go down early and that fact allowed me, I
felt, to quite rightly charge some of my expenses to this Gov-
ernment. I was very very careful, Mr. Speaker, because I feel
very strongly that we should not charge political trips to this
Government, and we are very careful not to do that.

Mr. Veale: My final question relates to the trip to give lec-
tures at the University of Calgary. I note the Government
Leader was accompanied by Mr. Morrison. Would the Govern-
ment Leader indicate why Mr. Morrison was on that trip?

Hon. Mr. Pearson: Yes, Mr. Speaker; I find it necessary —

‘as strange as it might seem to someone who has not been in this

position — just about every time I go anywhere, to have some-
one along with me, because I cannot make all of the arrange-
ments that have to be made for the demands upon my time,
while T am Outside. I do not know whether this is good or bad,
butitis a fact that I am loathe now toleave this Territory at any
time without having either Mr. Morrison, or someone who is
prepared to do the kind of things that are necessary with re-
spect to my time allocations while I am Outside.

Question re: Native Unemployment in Yukon

Mr. Penikett: It is lonely at the top.

I have a question for the Minister of Economic Development
Our unemployment rate is now 20 percent, Mr. Speaker,
according to the latest Economic Research and Planning Unit
study; it may well be more because of difficulties with their
methodology, as this House has been made aware of some year
ago. Statistics Canada has now embarked upon a new labour
force survey for Yukon, to their credit and to the Minister’s
credit. My question to the Minister is: is he satisfied that the
labour force survey being now conducted by Statistics Canada
will adequately reflect native unemployment in Yukon?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I think I would have to take
that question under advisement.

I should point out, referring to the preamble of his question,
that the unemployment rate could quite conceivably be less
than what the Member is indicating. If he reads that report, I
believe there is a 3.4 percent increase of people employed in the
work force. So, Mr. Speaker, there has been some progress
made, contrary towhat the Member is trymg to indicate in his
questioning.

Myr. Penikett: It reminds me of last year when we de-
creased the rate by exporting people from the Territory.

Given that out of eight smaller Yukon communities to be
surveyed, only two have significant native populations, will the
Minister seek an assurance in writing from Statistics Canada,
before they publish any official unemployment and employ-
ment figures, that they will have surveyed a representative
number of Yukon native communities?

Hon.Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I would be expecting them to
survey, in a large part, most of the communities throughout
the Territory; subsequently, it would provide the information
for the- Member opposite. I recognize that there is a fair
amount of unemployment with the native population; various
things are being done by our Government, as well as at the
Federal level, as I understand it, in attempting to get them into
the work force wherever possible.

I would indicate further, with respect to exporting people, in
the preamble to his question: once again, Mr. Speaker, that is
not the policy of this Government. If one looks at the statistics
that are being presented, there is definitely a stabilization, if
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not an increase, of people coming to the Territory and making
their homes here. One has only to look at the real estate market
_to see that indication.
Mr. Penikett: Mr. Speaker I am sure the Mlnlster is not
telling us that this policy is to import the work force. That has

another wrinkle too. Given that the information I have indi-

cates. it is only the eight-communities that are.going to be

immediately surveyed, and given that only a verbal undertak-.

ing, as I understand it, has been given recently by Statistics

Canada that rural Native communities and populations will be ‘

‘surveyed, will the Minister seek this assurance in writing from
Statistics Canada, so that we can get accurate —.and I mean
accurate — figures about our unemployment problem, which
we all recogmze to be serious, especlally in those commum-
ties? ¢
. Hon. Mr, I.ang. Mr. Speaker, there is no questlon that the
unemployment statisties are serious in the winter months; we
recognize that most of the work force is generally employed
during the spring, summmer, and fall, and consequently I do not
think it is a true ihdication, in-some respects, of the actual

financial situation of individuals over the course of those two or

three months remaining in the year during the winter. I am
prepared to look irito this aspect of the question that the Mem-
ber is ralsmg, but I am not at this time prepared to give assur-
ances. :

Question re:

Mr. Byblow:
Economic Development as well. It is on the subject. of the
MacPass development. Can the Minister advise whether or not
the MacPass development region would be sub]ect to an en-
vironmental assessment review process?

Hon. Mr. Lang: . Mr. Speaker, there are actlve dlscussmns
presently going on with the Federal Departments involved. As

MacMillan I’n- chlopnent Studies

indicated, I believe, during the discussions on the Budget, that.

we had reallocated priorities in the renewable resource side of
the Budget, for a bio- physical study of the MacPass area. With
respect to the environmental assessment review process, right
now indications are that it will not be necessary to go through
that procedure; however, there are still discussions going on,
so that is not firm at the present time.

Mr. Byblow:

resource base data and environmental data on this region?
Hon. Mr. Lang: - Mr. Speaker, just to refresh the Member’s
memory: he has voted for a Budget, over the last two years,

that provides for certain environmental studies to be done

under the Renewable Resource sub-agreement. With respect
to the MacPass area, in view of the activity up there, I indi-
cated in the Budget, and perhaps he was outside the House
when we were discussing it, that we had re-aligned pl‘lOl‘ltleS,
arid we were putting a concerted effort into doing a number of
studies of the MacPass area, because of the development that
is proposed there.

Mr. Byblow: I.am glad the Minister has conﬁrmed that this
region is being examined in terms of resource base data, My
final supplementary would be to-query .whether or not a land
use survey of this region is being prepared. If it is not, would it
require that — prior to any development?.

Hon.Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I am not too clear as to what
the Member sees as a land use survey. I think there are certain
studies that have to be done with respect to the fresh water that
could be affected, as well as the fisheries. I think at the same
time, there has to be a certain amount of credence given to the
fact that some development can-take place over the course of
the next number of years without a long drawn-out affair,
which means that the people that the Member for Whitehorse
West has referred to that are unemployed couid result in their
having to wait back for some inquiry to take place.

I recognize there is some responsibility for environmental
studies, certainly in the land base as well, but at the same time,
Mr. Speaker, it is the position of this Govemment that certain.
things could proceed with very little problem _

1 will direct my- question to.the Minister of.:

Is the Minister confirming then that there isa. .
renewable resource sub-agreement being. struck, to collect
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Question re: Parks Canada/Cost-Sharing in Community
. Projects
Mrs. McGuire: 1 have a question for the Minister of Muni-

cipal and Community Affairs. During the consideration of the
municipality financing for Haines Junction, would the Minis-
ter and his Government implement a cost-sharing plan with
Parks Canada on various community projects, from which
Parks Canada and its employees benefit with no extra cost to
them?

Hom. Mr. Lattin: 1 believe that particular one would take

 some mvestlgatlon and I will take that questlon under advise-

ment. :

Mrs. McGuire: 1 would ask the Minister if he would agree,
then, that O&M charges on the new proposed sewage lagoon
should be cost-shared at least 40 percent by Parks Canada, .
thus relieving the financial burden of Haines Junctlon tax- .
payers?

Hen. Mr. Lattin:  Where I have taken the other question
under advisement, we will consider that also.

Question re: Mosquito Control

Mr. Fleming: On a little more serious note: on the news
release I see that our-old flying friends are all back this spring
again ,and I see that the Government is spending $28,000 to ban
these pests from Yukon. I would ask the Minister of Commun-
ity Affairs, Mr. Speaker, as to why he does not attack this pest
through the Petty Trespass Ordinance, and, failing this, to ban
this obnoxious fellow from Yukon with regulations?

Hon. Mr. Lattin: 1 am afraid, Mr. Speaker, I am going to
have to take that one, also, under advisement.

Question re: Porcupine Caribou Herd : .

Mr. Veale: Mr. Speaker, 1 have a question for the Mlnlster, :
of Renewable Resources. The Minister is well aware of the
United States Government’s unwillingness to enter into an
international caribou treaty. Would he indicate what develop-
ments have taken place recently, along the lines of a manage
ment plan for the Porcupine Caribou Herd in Canada? -

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, there have been:discussions :

at the official level over the course of the last year. I recognize
that the United States Government has indicated that they do
not want to enter into an international agreement, complying
with the wishes of the State of Alaska. It is my understanding
that the State of Alaska has taken the position that the manage-
ment of the herd can be dorie in such a manner between the two,
jurisdictions, Yukon and Alaska, as well ‘as, to some extent,
Northwest Territories, without complicating it with Federal
involvement. .
. As far as I know, the management of the caribou herd has
gone no further than what was announced with respect to the
position that was brought forward by the Government of the
United States; I am not too sure, Mr. Speaker, whether it is an
official statement by the United States Government, or
whether it was second-hand information that was brought
through by the media.

Mr. Veale: Has the Minister, or a member of hlS depart-
ment, actually had recent ongoing discussions with Federal
Government officials about the concept of a Canadian manage-
ment plan for the Porcupine Caribou Herd, which would in-
volve the people of Old Crow as part of that management?. .

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker — and I am going on memory
now — I do not believe there have been discussions recently,
but I would have to double check.

Mr. Veale: Is it the intention of the Government to pursue
such a management plan, on behalf of people of Yukon and in
conjunction with the people of the Northwest Territories?

Hon. Mr. Lang: ° Mr. Speaker, I am more than prepared to
consider anythmg, as long as it makes sense.

Question re: Wolf Creek Mineral Claims

Mr. Penikett: Arnd it does not cost any money, Mr. Speaker

I have a question for the Minister of Municipal and Commun-
ity Affairs. Can the Minister indicate whether he has as yet any
answers to my questions in the previous Session, regarding
mineral claims and surface title in Wolf Creek,.and the appa-
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rent requirement for the postmg of .a bond in the event of .

.damage to property?

Hon.Mr. Lattin: Mr. Speaker thls isan ongomg concern of
not only Whitehorse but of other jurisdictions, and at this par-
ticular time I have nothing more to report on it.

. Mr. Penikett: I am heartened to hear that it is an ongoing
concern. I wonder if the Minister could indicate what steps he
is taking to petition the Federal authorities to tighten up the

Federal law involved, so that property owners’ interests are
fully protected in the case of a conflict with the holders of

mineral claims?
' Hom. Mr. Lattin: Mr. Speaker, at thls particular tlme we
have had some discussion, and that is as far as we have gone.

‘Mr. Penikett: 1 am again pleased that there has been some
discussion: I wonder if the Minister could indicate to the House -

. something about the nature of those discussions and the per-

sons involved and whether they will be continuing, but also, at -

the same time, indicate what specific action in those discus-

- sions he is looking for, with-respect to the kind of situation we
. found at Wolf Creek last year.

. Hom.Ms.Lattin: Mr. Speaker, asIsay,we are dlscussmg it.
. Iam not able at this time to elaborate on any achievement from
these discussions; it is a very complex thing. It is a problem
that we have had not only in our own area but in other areas,
and I really do not think there is any cut and dried or ready
solutions to it. I think the only thing we can do, Mr. Speaker, is
torecognize that there is a problem, and hopefully, by pursuing
discussions and seeing what they are doing in other jurisdic-
tiens, probably the whole concept of conflict between the two
parties will be resolved in a satisfactory method to everybody

Question re: Agricultural Land Policy

Mr. Byblow: I have a couple of questions for the Minister of
‘Municipal and Communities Affairs, as well. It is on the sub-
ject of agricultural land policy.

Insofar as the outlying areas of the Terrltory are concerned
where agricultural potential exists within the boundaries of the
present L.I.D.s and municipalities, can the Minister advise
whether agricultural policy within those boundaries- will-be

-primarily the jurisdiction of . the municipal entity?- - ;

Hon.Mr. Lattin: Mr. Speaker, when an overall agricultutal
policy is'in effect, it would be for lands that we would consider
to be under the jurisdiction of YTG. I would submit to you that
if there is some agricultural land within the- mumcxpallty or
L.1.D., I would think that we would be very amiss if we were to
tell the people how to look after their own jurisdiction. I would
also say, Mr. Speaker, that they would have the zoning author-
ity in that area, so they would have the ultimate say as to
whether agrlcultural leases would be obtainable in thelr ]urls-
dictions."

Mr. Byblow: I appreciate what the Mmlster is-saying;be-
cause it relates very specifically to a couple of cases in my
riding, where there is some confusion as to. the jurisdiction
over an agricultural land use policy. I would: simply-ask the
Minister if he could clarify, then, that it is up to the‘municipali-
ties to establish land use policy: within their boundarles as
pertaining to agricultural pursuits? .

‘Hom. Mr. Lattin: Yes, Mr. Speaker, 1 would say that would
be a fair assessment. .

Question re: Plpellne Compensation for Trappers

Mr. Penikett: Mr. Speaker, I have a question for the Gov-
ernment Leader. I want to thank the Government Leader for
yesterday answering my written questions on ‘the matter of

pipeline compensatlon for trappers. In his answer, the Govern-
ment’ Leader ‘states that the proposed terms and conditions

outline an arbitration process for compensation.

-Inthis regard, can the Government Leader inform the House
if he is aware of Bill C-60, which was recently passed by the
Federal Parliament?

Hon. Mr. Pearson: No Mr. Speaker, I am sorry — possibly -

if the Honourable Member had given me the title of the bill, it
might have helped me in my recollection.

Mr, Pcnllutr Thank you, Mr. Speaker; I see the ‘Govern-'
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ment Leader is a literary man. I thought , as the Minister of
Finance, that he was a numbers person. But, I stand corrected.

It is Bill C-60 which is amendments to the National Energy
Board Act, which institutes a comprehensive arbitration and
appeal process for land owners and users-whose property is
affected by pipeline. I wondered if the Government Leader
could indicate whether this bill, the amended National Energy
Board Act would, in this respect, take precedence over the
terms and conditions for the pipeline?

Hon. Mr. Pearson: Mr. Speaker, I am not positive, but I do
not believe that they would. I believe that those terms and
conditions are being made specifically for that pipeline, and if
they are signed, they will apply specifically to that pipeline and

'will, in fact, be law. They will be law under a Canadian Act.

Mr.Penikett: Of course these amendments too came in asa
result of some problems in the South, in connection with the
same pipeline. I wonder if the Government Leader could in-
form the House what his officials are doing to inform trappers
and other land users of their rights under this leglslatlon and

" .in light of his answers yesterday, so that they may know to

what extent their interests will be protected?

Hon. Mr. Pearson: Well, Mr. Speaker, we have had a num-
ber of meetings with the Trappers’ Association; we have had
our pipeline meetings with the Trappers’ Association. Our
Wildlife Branch has quite an interest in trapping in the Terri-
tory, and are working very closely with them. I am quite confi-
dent, Mr. Speaker, that all of the trappers who might be
affected by that pipeline at any time are well aware of what the

terms and conditions say, and the alternatives that are gomg to

be open’‘to them.

Qucotlon re: Alcollol and Dnln Servlcu

Mr. Veale: 1 have a question for the Minister of Health and
Human Resources regardmg alcohol and drug services. The
Minister recently announced the rejection of the main recom-
mendation of the Brass Report: that of establishing an inde- -

:pendent foundation. She further stated that many of the prob-
Iems outlined in the Brass Report were being addressed. What
* steps has the Minister taken to ensure that the outlying areas of

the Yukon, as well as Whltehorse, are well-served by alcohol

and drug services?

' Hom. Mrs. McCall: Mr Speaker, much analysxs is being

- done of the outlying areas: how they may best be served —

commumty health workers and community alcohol workers

- working as teams.

‘M. Veale: One of the areas of the Brass Report was that
local community alcohol committees should be established,
and it was a concept that was considered to be excellent in the

”report Would the Minister advise how many such committees
‘have been established to date?

llon.lln McCall: Mr. Speaker, thedepartment is organiz-

ing a conference on alcohol and drugs in the Yukon, and at that

‘time, the subject of local committees for alcohol treatment will
‘be looked at.

Mr, Vcalc- One of. the other areas. of concern is that my
information is that the number of workers that used. to be
involved in the Community Consultant Program have been
reduced Would the Minister confirm that that is in fact the
case, and what she. intends to do about it?

Homn. Mrs. McCall: Mr. Speaker, some time ago there was
much criticism of hiring southern social workers, so the de-
partment has been making an effort to hire local people, and
Yukoners particularly, This is a little difficult to do at times.
There are not the trained people in the Yukon, so thisis another
problem that the department is looking at very carefully.

Quutlon re: Canada/Yukon Tourism Agreement

Mr, Byblow:: 1 have a.couple of questions I will direct to the
Mlmster of Tourism. It is on the subject of the Canada/Yukon
Touristn Agreement. Under the various projects and prog-
rams implemented under the agreement, there is one particu-
lar program 1dent1ﬁed as the tourism opportunity identifica-
tion program. As I understand the program, it is assistance
money provided towards the preparation of studies, and to-
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wards the development of tourism-related facilities. 1 would
ask the Minister whether he can confirm if that is the particu-
lar program under which at least $2 million is still left uncom-
mitted, and is therefore still available?

Hom. Mr. Lang: No, it is not, Mr. Speaker. :

Mr. Byblow: Would the Minister then be aware of whether
or not there is still funding available under thls particular
program and, if so, perhaps, how much?

-Hon. Mr. Lang: I believe there is, Mr. Speaker. The total
amount allocated to this program at the initiation of it was
approximately $300,000.. 1 am going on memory now. I will
provide the information concemlng the exact amount, but I
believe it is $300,000.

- -Mr. Byblow: - When he does provide that mformatlon could
he confirm whether or not-the application deadline date for
that particular program is still January, 19827

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I understand it is.'I should
clarify further, perhaps. The grants are available;, Mr. Speak-
er, for approved proposals up to 75 percent of the first $10,000,
and 50 percent of eligible costs in excess of $10,000, to a max-
imum of $50,000, depending on the proposal.

It should be pointed out that it is fairly clear in the terms and
conditions what eligible costs could be utilized for this prog-
ram: for example, architectural design, technical, legal or
financial services: So, it is fairly specific, Mr. Speaker, where
this money could be spent on a cost-shared basis with the
applicant. .

" Mr. Fleming: A supplementary, Mr. Speaker, to the same
Minister on the other part of that same subject: it was yester-
day morning, I think, that I asked the question, and I specifical-
ly asked if that program could be used, for instance, to build a
campground on the Alaska Highway by. a tourism operator,
and I got a long-winded answer which did not quite explain that
in detail. ,

-Hom. Mr. Lang:
statement? ; _ . S

Mr. Fleming: No, it is not a statement. I am asking the
Minister: can that program be used for that type of a thing or
for that specific item?

Hon. Mr. Lang: I believe that would be cons1dered Mr.
Speaker. It has to be understood that these proposals go before
the Federal-Territorial management beard set up under the
agreement, and each proposal is considered on its own merit —
of commercial viability of whether or not they are eligible to
receive some assistance to get a certain project underway. 1
will double-check for the Member. .

Question re: Elections Ordinance

Mr. Penikett: Thank you, Mr. Speaker, I have a question
for the Premier. Last fall the Rules, Elections and Privileges
Committee recommended to the House that the revised Elec-

‘Mr. Speaker, is the Member making a

tions Ordinance provide for the nomination by registered poli--

tical parties to the Elections Board, and at the time, during
debate, there was some indication that the Government might
later be bringing forward such amendments. Could the Gov-
ernment Leader indicate whether we can expect such amend—
ments in this Session?

Hon. Mr. Pearson: I am sorry, Mr. Speaker, the Honour-
able Member has taken me by surprise with a question, finally,
for which I do not have the answer. I will have to check into
that.

Mr. Penikett: Mr. Speaker, I fear I may have been talking
too fast; if the Government Leader did not understand the
question clearly, it concerned those recommendations. in the
Rules, Elections and Privileges Committee report which did
not find their way into the amendments to the Elections Ordi-
nance. I am specifically interested in the recommendation of
the Committee that registered political parties, now that they
exist, should be allowed to nominate to the Elections Board,
and not just the Government Party.

Hon. Mr. Pearson: Yes, Mr. Speaker, we very seriously
. ‘considered that recommendation, and, as seriously as we
could, Mr. Speaker, decided that we could not accept that
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recommendation, nor should we accept that recommendation;
therefore it was not included in the amendments, as pointed out
by the Honourable Member.

Mr. Penikett: Iamsorry tohear that, Mr. Speaker. Iunder-
stood, during the debate on the legislation, that there was a
commitment to reconsider the question. So that I can be per-
fectly clear on this from the Government Leader, is it the
position of his Government then that future appointments to
the Elections Board will be made exclusively by nominations
from the Government Party — and this is the Board that re-
ferees elections and must be fair to all Parties — rather than
the other Parties represented in this House?

Hon. Mr. Pearson: Mr. Speaker, in fact, when those — I
should not say ‘“‘we’’ because this Government has not made
any nominations to that Board. I am aware that when that
Board was first set up, advice was sought. I believe that this
Government, and any government that follows, would seek the
same kind of advice, because, I must admit, the appointments
to that Board are I think good ones. They have worked, and
worked well. The Board has functioned to everyone’s satisfac-
tion, I am sure. I would not like to see that Board, particularly
that Board, answerable to any political party at all.

ORDERS OF THE DAY

GOVERNMENT MOTIONS

Mr. Speaker: There being no further questions, we will
proceed at this time to Orders of the Day, under Government
Motions.

Mr. Clerk: Item Number 3, standing in the name of the
Honourable Mr. Lattin.

Mr. Speaker: Is the Honourable Member prepared to deal
with Item Number 3? :

Hon. Mr. Lattin: Yes, Mr. Speaker.

Motion Number 14

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable Minis-
ter of Municipal and Community Affairs, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Member for Whitehorse West, that the membership of
the Standing Committee on Public Accounts as established by
Motion Number 31 of the Second Session of the 24th Legislature
be amended:

(1) by rescinding the appomtment of Mr. Hibberd, and

(2) by appointing Mr. Falle to the said Committee.

Hon. Mr. Lattin: Mr. Speaker, I think what we are trying to
do at this time is quite evident in the Motion. I have nothing else
to say ‘on it at this particular time.

Motion agreed to

Mr. Clerk: Item Number 4, standing in the name of the
Honourable Mr. Lang.

Mr. Speaker: Is the Honourable Member prepared to deal
with Item 4?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Yes, Mr. Speaker.

Motion Number 15

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable Minis-
ter of Tourism and Economic Development, seconded by the
Honourable Government Leader, that Messrs. Tracey, Gra-
ham and Veale be appointed to the Special Committee on Food
Prices, as established by resolution of this House.

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I think the resolution speaks
for itself. You will recall a number of days ago that we had a
debate concerning the principle of a public inquiry being held
on this particular issue, rather than a committee of the House
being set up, to investigate the situation that exists in Yukon as
far as the food prices are concerned.

I want to reiterate, Mr. Speaker, that I spoke against the
principle of a public inquiry, for a number of reasons: one was
the legal jurisdiction of the public inquiry. Also, I spoke against
it with respect to the financial implications of a public inquiry
and what it would mean to the taxpayer, and also what the
responsibilties of the Members of this House were, and how we
‘could utilize the resources of this House to accomplish the
same ends, but probably more possibly come to some solution
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or recommendations that could be perhaps enacted by Govern-
ment down the road.

1 was somewhat disappointed, Mr. Speaker, with respect to
the statement made by the Member for Riverdale South on his
position with respect to a committee of the House to look into
this matter. I recognize that the Members of the House have
the prerogative of appointing Members to. the Board, and I
would like to hear further what other Members have to say,
with respect to the membership of this particular Committee.

Mr. Hanson: Mr. Speaker, I have an amendment to the
motion, seconded by the Honourable Member for Hootalinqua,
that the said motion be amended by substituting the name,
“Penikett’’ for the name, ‘‘Veale” where it appears in the first
line.

The reason being, Mr Speaker, that — and I will quote Han-
sard where the Honourable Leader of the Opposition said:

‘“Mr. Speaker, I take interest in the amendment be-
cause it is clearly put forward in a spirit of coopera-
tion. But I do not support the amendment for. this
reason: it does not, in any way, go to the root of the
issue. The importance of having an inquiry is that it
can get down to the facts. We now have a proposal
which, superficially, looks like an excellent solution,
but is in no way going outside this jurisdiction to meet
with people, to come up with anything that is more
realistic than the Minister’s meeting with Kelly Doug-
las now. It does not advance the position at all. For
that reason, I cannot support the amendment.” .
Mr. Speaker, what it says, before the Committee has even got
off the ground or the members have been appointed, is that the
Honourable Leader of the Opposition does not agree with it. So,
I tend not to support the motion as it reads right now; I favour
the Committee being set up, but I cannot support it on the basis
of the Honourable Leader of the Opposition being on it when he
is against it before it starts.

Thank you, Mr. Speaker.

Mr. Speaker: Could the Chair have a copy of the proposed
amendment?

Mr. Veale: I indicated publlcly last Friday that I would sit
on the Committee. I am somewhat disappointed that the Mem-
ber for Mayo feels that way, as I was prepared to put in a great
deal of work and cooperate with the Government on that par-
ticular amendment that had made, in spite of the fact that I still
take the position that an inquiry under the Inquiries Ordinance
is the best procedure.

I am still, of course, prepared to sit on that Committee and
work hard for it, as it is meeting the Government on its amend-
ment, and moving forward to produce the best possnble food
prices that we could have in this Territory.

Of course, I would not stand opposed to the amendment be-
cause it is appointing another very Honourable Member of this
Assembly who has worked hard in that regard, as well.

Mr. Speaker: Order please. Before we proceed any longer I
ought to, from the Chair, propose the question.

It has been moved by the Honourable Member for Mayo,
seconded by the Honourable Member for Hootalinqua, that the
said Motion be amended by substituting the name, ‘‘Penikett”
for the name, “‘Veale”’, where it appears in the first line.

Mr. Penikett: Mr. Speaker, I would be happy to be on the
Committee.

Mr. Fleming: 1did nothear the commént by fhe Honourable

Member. I would appreciate hearing it before going into the
amendment of the Motion.

Mr. Speaker: Is there any further debate? Amendment
agreed to

Mr. Speaker: Isthere any further debate on the Motion as
amended?

Motion agreed to

Mr. Speaker: Wewill now proceed to Government Bills and

Orders.
Mr. Clerk: Second reading, Bill Number 21, standing in the
name of the Honourable Mrs. McCall.
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Bill Number 21: Second Reading

Hom. Mrs. McCall: Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded by the
Honourable Member for Hootalinqua, that Bill Number 21, An
Ordinance to Amend the Health Care Insurance Plan Ordi-
nance be now read a second time.

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable Mlms-
ter of Health and Human Resources, seconded by the Honour-
able Member for Hootalinqua, that Bill Nubmer 21 be now read
a second time.

Hon.Mrs.McCall: Mr. Speaker I am pleased to present, for
the consideration of the Legislative Assembly, the White Pap-
er on Pharmacare for the Yukon Senior Citizens Program.
During the Fall Session of the Yukon Legislature, interest was
expressed by all Members, in instituting a prescription drug
plan for senior citizens. The objective of such a plan would be to
reduce the direct cost of prescription drugs for that group, who
are often on a fixed income and most vulnerable to the in-
creased cost of living.

To this end, the Department of Health and Human Resources

has researched drug plans throughout Canada. In addition, the

Deputy Minister and Minister of Health and Human Resources
have had the opportunity to meet with representatives of the
Health Protection branch of the Department of Health and
Welfare on this matter. In preparing this paper, meetings have
been held with the Medical Services Branch, Yukon region;
National Health and Welfare; Yukon Council on Aging;
pharmacists representing the retail drug store outlets; the
Yukon Medical Association; and the Yukon Dental Associa-
tion. :

Estimates of the size of population which will be served by
this plan vary somewhat, owing to discrepancies in availabie
statistics. For example, according to the September, 1980
population statistics in the Yukon Economic Review, there are
1,234 residents 65 years of age and over, while there are appro-
ximatley 875 residents in that age group registered in the
Yukon Health Insurance Care Plan.

In July, 1980, there were only 689 persons registered for
old-age security. It is estimated that there are 396 status Indi-
ans 65.years of age and over. The 1981 Census may provide a
more accurate figure. Yesterday I tabled An Ordinance to
Amend the Health Care Insurance Plan Ordinance, and today I
am tabling this White Paper in the Legislature.

The intention is to introduce the Pharmacare for Yukon
Senior Citizens Program as regulations, pursuant to the
amended Health Care Insurance Plan Ordinance. This will
enable the Government of Yukon to have the program in place
months earlier than was originally forecast, and to provide
these much needed benefits to Yukon Senior Citizens sooner.
Therefore, this Government intends to have the Pharmacare
for Yukon Senior Citizens Program in place by July 1, 1981. The
White Paper outlines the features of the Pharmacare program
that I will be introducing as regulations, so that Members will
have the opportunity to know what the specific nature of the
program will be. It is intended that this White Paper will pro-
vide information on the various program features that will be
included in the regulations under which this program will
operate.

Oneof the central issuesofthe Pharmacare for Yukon Senior
Citizens Program is to build in appropriate and reasonable
controls, but to balance this with streamlined administrative
procedures which will minimize administrative costs. Both in
developing this paper and in subsequent development of the
regulations pursuant to the Health Care Insurance Plan Ordi-
nance, ongoing consultation with professional and community
groups affected by the plan is seen as essential to the imple-
mentation of a plan which truly meets the needs of Yukon
senior citizens.

Mr. Veale: Well, let me say, Mr. Speaker, that we are cer-
tainly in agreement with Pharmacare, and we are pleased that
the Government has been able to move so quickly in introduc-
ing it. We certainly may have comments on some of the details
outlined in the White Paper and some of the specifics, but we
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are in agreement with the general prmc1ple of the leglslatlon

Motion agreed to

Mr. Clerk: Third reading, Bill Number 17, standmg in the
name of the Honourable Mr. Lattin. .

Bill Number 17: Third Reading

Hon. Mr. Lattin: Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded by the
Honourable Member for Hootalinqua, that Bill Number 17, An
Ordinance to Amend the Lands Ordinance, be now read a third
time.

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable Minis-
ter of Municipal and Community Affajrs, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Member for Hootalmqua that Bill Number 17 be now
read a third time.

Motion agreed to

Mr.Speaker: Are you prepared to adopt the title to. the blll"

Hon.Mr. Lattin: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded by the
Honourable Member for Hootalinqua, that Bill Number 17 do
now pass and that the title by as on the Order Paper.

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable Minis-
ter of Municipal and Commuity Affairs, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Membér for Hootalinqua, that Bill Number 17 do now
pass and the the title be as on the Order Paper.

Motion agreed to

Mr. Spoalmr- Ideclare that Bill Number 17 has passed this
House.

Mr. Clerk: Third reading, Bill Number 16, standing in the
name of the Honourable Mr. Pearson.

Bill Number 16: Third Reading

Hon. Mr. Pearson: Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded by the
Minister of Tourism and Economic Development, that Bill
Number 16, Third Appropriation Ordmance (1981-82), be now
read a third time.

My. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable Gov-
ernment’ Leader, seconded by the Honourable Minister of
Tourism and Economic Development, that Bill Number 16 be
now read a third time.

Mr. Veale: My only comment on this loan to White Pass is
that it is interest-free, and it amounts to a substantial amount
more than $1°'million because of the interest-free provision.
Although we do not oppose it, we are hopeful that the Govern-
ment is making some investigation into ways of helpmg the
small business man of the Territory, who is still paying interest
rates of 18 to 20 percent on money that he has borrowed.

Hon.Mr.Lang: Mr. Speaker, with respect to the comments
‘made by the Leader of the Opposition, the problems that the
small business people with the financial institutions as they
exist today are a major concern to us. One thing about it: if the
Government of Canada could get the value of the dollar to the
degree that it should be, perhaps it would resolve some of our
problems.

_ 'Further tothat; Mr. Speaker for the Member s information,
we are negotiating a Business Development Incentive Act,
which, hopefully might alleviate some of the problems that the
Member has raised. All we have to do is get some cooperation

_ from the Government of Canada; at the present time it
appears the cooperation might be there

Motion agreed to

Mr.Speaker: Are youprepared toadopt thetitle to the Bill?

Hou. Mr. Pearson: Yes, Mr. Speaker. I move, seconded by
the Honourable Minister of Tourism and Economic Develop-
ment, that Bill Number 16 do now pass and that the title be ason

" the Order Paper.

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable Gov-
ernment Leader, seconded by the Honourable Minister of
Tourism and Economic Development, that Bill Number 16 do
now pass and that the title be as on the Order Paper.

Motion agreed to

Mr. Speaker: Ideclare that Bill Number 16 has passed this
House.

We are now prepared to receive the Comm1ss1oner in his
role as Lieutenant-Governor, to give Assent to certain bills.
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Mr. Co--h.loncr enters the Chamber, Announced by the
Sergeant-At-Arms

Mr. Commissioner: Please be seated.

Mr. Speaker: May it please your Honour, the Assembly
has, at its present Session, passed a number of bills to which, in
the name of and on behalf of the Assembly, I respectfully
request your Assent.

Myr. Clerk: Second Appropriation Ordinance (1981-82);
Loan Agreement Ordinance (1981) No. 1; Financial Agree-
ment Ordinance, 1981; Municipal General Purposes Loan
Ordinance, 1981; An Ordinance to Amend the Tobacco Tazx
Ordinance; An Ordinance to Amend the Home Qwners’ Grant
Ordinance; An Ordinance to Amend the Fuel Oil Tax Ordi-
nance; Third Appropriation Ordinance, 1980-81; Interprovin-
cial Subpoena Ordinance; Survival of Actions Ordinance; In-
ternational Child Abduction (Hague Convention) Ordinance;
Miscellaneous Statute Law Amendment Ordinance, 1981, (No.
1); An Ordinance to Amend the Lands Ordinance; Third
Appropriation Ordinance (1981-82). ‘

Mr. Commissioner: Ihereby Assent to the Bills as enumer-
ated by the Clerk. : '

Mr. Commissioner lcavca the Chamber
Mr. Speaker: May I have your further pleasure atb this
time? -
Mr. Graham: Mr Speaker, I recommend that we now pro-
ceed with Motions Other Than Government Motions.

Mr. Speaker: We will now call Motions Other Than Govern-
ment Motlons ’

‘MOTIONS OTHER THAN GOVERNMENT

Mr. Clerk: Item Number 1, standing in the name of Mr.
Veale.

Mr. Speaker: Is the Honourable Member prepared to deal
with Item 1?

Mr. Veale: Mr. Speaker, I understand that there w1ll be
time tomorrow, and I am prepared to have that stand until the
next sitting day.

" Mr. Speaker:

Myr. Clerk:
Penikett.

Myr. Speaker: Is the Honourable Member prepared to deal
with Item 2? -

Myr. Pentkett: Yes, Mr. Speaker

Motion Number 10
- Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable Mem-
ber for Whitehorse West, seconded by the Honourable Member
for Mayo, that the Second Report of the Standing Committee on
Public Accounts, presented to the House on April 6, 1981, be
concurred in. :

Mr. Penikett: This is the Second Report of the Standing
Committee on Public Accounts. Last year, in my presentation
on behalf of the Committee, I spent some time detailing the
procedures that we had adopted, which were and are umque
among Public Accounts Committees in Canada.

It is appropriate for me to tell you at this time that those
procedures have not, in any substantive way, changed during
our second round hearings, except in one major respect. Last
year, following the practice of the Province of Saskatchewan,
which province’s committee had been studied by our Clerk
prior to the establishment of this Committee, we sat in camera.
Following the advice from a number of other Public Accounts
Committee chairmen in the rest of the country, and after some
discussion by our Members, an important decision was made
this year to hold our hearings in public. ‘

I believe, Mr. Speaker, that, somewhat to the surprise of all
Members, the fact that the committee hearings were in public,
that the press had access to the proceedings on a daily basis,
and that citizens were able to come and observe the proceed-

So ordered.
"Item Number 2, standmg in the name of Mr
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ings, made absolutely no difference whatsoever to the way in
which the Committee worked.

We were unfortunate this year that we had lost the services of
a former Leader of the Opposition who was a Chartered
Accountant — someone who was interested in this subject mat-
ter and who played an invaluable role in the Committee. He
was, I think personally, very influential in establishing a tone
and a business-like manner for the hearings in our first sitting.
However, replacements for the Members for both Whitehorse
-Souith Centre and Riverdale South were made. The Member for
Hootalinqua and the Member for Faro, I want to say, did
admirable service as new Members to the Committee. Of
course we also lost the Member for Whitehorse North Centre,
who was elevated to new respon51b|llt1es and therefore could
not continue. -

The Committee is, I think, evolving slowly. We have as has
been outlined before, adopted the modern practice of Public
Accounts Committees; which is to be future-oriented, to be
positive in their recommendations — rather than dwelling, as
Public Accounts Committees have in the past, on particular
horror stories that may or may not arise, from year to year in
one department or another.

There is, I think, still an unfortunate tendency in some pro-
vinces for the Public Accounts Committee to dwell, ad
nauseam, on the expense accounts of certain Deputy Minis-

ters, or Cabinet Ministers, and so forth. We really have not yet '

had reason to spend any time with that subject, but we have
instead been proceeding to deal with two departments a year,
and attempting to look at the administration of the public
funds, in the year-end review and years preceding that, of
those two departments, in the hope that — unless the growth of
Government departments accelerates — that we will, in the
normal four-year life of a Legislature, be able to cover most of
the major branches of government.

This year I think we have already seen — and the Govern-
ment is to be complemented for this, as well as the Committee I
think — some evidence that the Committee has had some quiet
impact on the administration. As the Government Leader has
previously recognized, I think that the Committee had some
influence on the fact that we had a new form of the Estimates. I
donot know whether the Committee had anything to do with the
fact that we had much better supplementary information on
the road equipment replacement account this year, but I think
that is also a positive development. _

1t should be noted that my discussions, and the discussions of
our Clerk, with other PAC Chairmen, have assisted me enor-
mously in trying to see the Committee’s work done.

I want to emphasize that this Committee has been a real'

pleasure to serve on, by virtue of the equal contribution by all
Members on it. I think that both the Memberslast year, and the
Members who continued this year and the new Members this
year, all played a fair and equal share in the work of the
Committee. That was a great satisfaction to me. ~

Public Accounts Committees are unique in onerespect: that,
save and accept for the Statutory Instruments Committee, it is
the one Committee of the House where Members 'sit, not as
Members of a Party, but sit solely as Members of the House to
dialogue with the Administration, rather than their political
opposites on the other side of the House. That dialogue has so
far proved useful, but let me say this: it has also been extreme-
ly educational for myself, and, I think, for other Members of
the Committee. If we did nothing else but spend two weeks
getting a useful seminar on the way certain departmentsrun, I
would feel it was time well-spent. However I think we have a
-larger purpose than that, and therefore, Mr. Speaker, I would
like to dwell briefly on our recommendations, and other Mem-
bers of the Committee will also want to comment on these
recommendations.

Recommendation Number 1 may be unnecessary, and the
Government Leader may want to elaborate on that point. I
think the auditors and Members of the Committee were slight-
ly confused — having read the financial administration manu-
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al — about the delegation of authority. I know we were con-
fused at last year’s hearing, about the way in which that de-

~ legation flowed down from the Commissioner. As I understand

it now, that delegation is clearly in the hands of the Ministers,
and if that is the case, then the recommendation is redundant,
and that is good.

The second recommendation, to do with long term planning
of highways, I want to emphasize, is not a recommendation
which is very forceful or strong. It does not say that this Gov-
ernment really must do long term planning, but we that think
we have reached the time in the development of our road
system toreally take alook at the probable benefits of planning
for a longer period than the current five year period, and to
formalize the informal planning process that now operates.

The third recommendation, concerning the accident plotting
system, we think would cost practically nothing to implement,
and would be a useful planning tool for the department.

Recommendation Number 4, concerning personnel data for
highways, arose, I think, from some fairly startling evidence
the Committee heard from one of our witnesses: evidence to
the effect that he did not know where employees of the depart-
ment were, or words to that effect. We had some problem
believing this, or accepting this evidence, but it was indicated
to us that the way in which the employees were accounted for,
or managed, did leave some gaps in the information, which we
thought this House could use. .

Road equipment replacement accountability is not a new
issue. It is one that was mentioned last year. I think, as I said,
that progress has been made on that.

Number 6, the maintenance and reconstruction criteria, con-
cerns the Highways Department. I want to tell the Government
Leader, since I know he is familiar with the Department, and
also the Minister opposite, that the intellectual capacity of all
Members of the Committee was stretched to its limit in trying
to understand or juggle the different criteria delineating
maintenance and reconstruction, and so forth. It took us quite a
long. time to come up with this recommendation, much less
understand the way the system worked.

Maintenance: cost identification: I think that recommenda-
tion is fairly self-explanatory. Again, it is one that we will be
interested to hear the Minister’s response to.

Transfer of funds, Recommendation Number 8, again is not a
major recommendation; it is just a small matter that arose
during the course of the hearings.

The construction program coordination: I want to empha-
size that we have all heard stories, from time to time, about the
ability of Public Works to do things more cheaply or more
expensively than other departments, in the propriety of
perhaps a department’s contracting directly out for some job
or work that needs doing.

We feel that, whatever problems may have existed in that
area in the past, accountability requires that there be a depart-
ment responsible and a Minister accountable, so that we may
know who made mistakes — if they occur — and know who to
blame. The Minister of Municipal Affairs blanched slightly,
buit we think that is probably the right way to go.

"Facility construction responsibility is, again, a recom-
mendation of the same kind, and flows logically from the same
concerns.

- Evaluation of contract proposals: I think I should be fair in
saying that this recommendation really arose because of a
large number of questions surrounding the Dawson sewer and
water project — which questions, in fairness to the depart-
ment, I say, are not answered yet, which may be answered to
our satisfaction. I believe that the Deputy Minister has indi-
cated that he may at some point be in a position to do a proper
review of that project, when it is finally wrapped up; the Com-
mittee has asked for some report on that review.

Recommendation Number 12 moves out of the Department
of Highways and Public Works, and into the Department of
Renewable Resources. Prior to the witnesses from that depart-
ment appearing before the Committee, we had a look at the
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Annual Reports from that department for recent years, and at
the Statement of Objectives in other Government documents,
and the statements that the chief witness gave us. There were a
number of inconsistencies; some inconsistencies would be
natural in a new and growing department, but others we felt
indicated a poor understanding of the department’s responsi-
bilities and objectives. I believe the witness advised us there
was some work underway, in terms of rewriting the objectives
of that department, and I thmk the Commlttee would be
pleased about that.

Again, the problem of performance measurement is a diffi-
cult one. The Committee spent sometime on this question, but
we feel that unless the objectives are clearly stated, and the
activities then flow logically from that and the programs of the
department are clearly defined, if this is lacking then accoun-
tability is very difficult, and the measurement of the work of
the officials of the department becomes near impossible.

There is a continuing concern expressed by Members of the
Committee, about the data base needed to management wild-
life in the Territory. We feel the data base is insufficient at the
moment. There may be some comment in the House about
whether the department has sufficient resources to do that
work at this time, and there may be some policy questions
lnvolved there, into which I do not want to stray, but as far as
the management of the resource is concerned, I think the Com-
mittee feels that, at this point in time, there is not sufﬁc1ent
data to be able to do the job properly.

Recommendation Number 15, concerning licence fees, is
also one arising out of the problem of management of
whether, from a management point of view, there are suffi-

cient recoveries to be able to offset the costs involved i m car-

rying out those duities.

.The Committee Members, you will have noted, also went
back, before it called its witnesses, and reviewed the imple-
mentation of the recommendations from the previous year. We
view that as an extremely important function of the Commit-
tee, and one that the Committee will continue to follow. I expect
that the Committee, next year, will follow up on the recom-
mendations from this year, and the commitments made by
Ministers and officials to implement or not to implement them.
I would hope that, as things proceed, the Committee, over a
period of time, will be able to contribute more and more to the
smooth and effective functioning of this Government, and that,
in some small way, we will be able to contribute to taxpayers
achieving some satisfaction that they are obtaining value for
money.

. Mr. Speaker, I have spoken at length but not in great detail
about the Report. I hope I have given some rough summary of
the recommendations, and our reasons for coming tothem. I
would urge all Members to support adoptlon of the Report.

Mr. Byblow: Mr. Speaker, in addition to the Chairman’s
comments, I would like to offer several observations on the
Report and the nature of the Committee.

As the Chairman noted, I was appointed to this Committee
last fall and, for the first time, participated in the Committee

_ investigations this past winter. I want to say how informative

and useful I found the exercise, the fruits of which are tabled
before you.

In particular, I observed and must compliment thé coopera-
tive attitude by the witnesses from the various departments
that appeared before us.

Further to that, I'was particularly 1mpressed with the Depu-
ty Minister of Highways and Public Works, who was put
through several days of very grueling questioning, and who
provided the Committee with invaluable information and
understanding of the internal workings of that department,
and of course, from whom emanated most of the recommenda-
tions of the report

If there is any activity of this Legislature that operates, with
less partisanship, I would be interested to know where it takes
place. The openness that I observed, the lack of partisanship,
the lack of the party lines, and the general public concern
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demonstrated by Committee Members, demonstrates to me
that this Committee is something very useful to the functioning
and understanding of the legislative process.

It 'is quite clear though, that matters of policy remain in the
domain of the political decisions, but it is the procedures, the
efficiency, the day-to-day accountability of that public purse
that rests in the hands of the administration. I think the Com-
mittee, ininvestigating this and reporting on the latter, found it
a very useful exercise in understanding. As noted by the Chair-
man, the Committee will be following up on recommendations
presented to the Legislature, just as it followed up on recom-
mendations made last year. - .

Personally, I look forward to contmumg‘my work on the
Committee, and I certainly would suggest toeach Member that
not only are the recommendations worth examining, but the
transeripts will provide just as much information.

Mr. Hanson: - Mr. Speaker, as a Member of this Committee,
I feel I should talk on the Report as well. I must mention, to
start with, since this is my first Committee meeting this win-
ter, I was very impressed with the Committee and the way it
was run. I was very pleased with the support staff, who were
doing all the work really and putting up with the Chairman,
who did a very good job; and, as a well-operated committee,
we had lots of work to do. Of course, if we had lots.of work to do,
our Researcher and Clerk had more to do than we had. In fact
at that time, the lady was limping around with a fractured
ankle, and during the process, of this Committee meeting, she
had to.go to the hospital for a major operation, and a screw was
removed from her ankle.

-Mr..Speaker, the lady in question dida very good ]ob and she
should be commended by this House.

It also should-commend the witness, particularly, as the
Member for Faro said, the Deputy Minister of Highways and
Public Works. Previous to this man’s arrival on the scene, the
system was kept in someone’s head. There was no clear-cut
system. That is my opinion of it. I think now that we are going to
have a system come out of this report, and with the knowledge
that that Deputy Minister has, I think that any one will be able
to understand the system when he is done with it. ..

In the Wildlife and Renewable Resources, the only way I can
put it is that I did not understand it when I:was the Minister
there; Iunderstood it less after going through-this Committee
hearing. I can understand part of the reasons as to why you
cannot really get a handle on anything, because, up to this date,

‘most of your data is found by word of mouth or from reports

that are given to them by people throughout the Territory.
However, I think the report is a useful report, and I hope the

‘Ministers will read it thoroughly and see the good points in it —
not just the bad points, if they find any —_ and I hope they will

endorse it.

- Thank you, Mr. Speaker. : :
Hon. Mr. Pearson: Thank you very much Mr. Speaker,
am very pleased to see that the Report of the Standing Commit-
tee on Public Accounts has -been tabled so quickly after the
recent hearings. This speedy action will provide the Govern-
ment and -administration with sufficient time to follow up on
accepted recommendations prlor to the 1982 meeting of the -

Commiittee.

- I would like to assure the Committee that the three status .
reports — specifically on Page 6, the Report of the previous
recommendations that have not yet been fully implemented;

'on Page 8 the Report on the Department of Finance FMS

projects; and on Page 9 the Report on the Department of Gov-
ernment Services FMS projects — will be provided by Decem-

‘ber 31, 1981, as-has been requested by the Committee.

Mr. Speaker, with respect to the recommendations that have
been summarized from Pages 27 to 29, I will deal with Recom-
mendation Number 1. The Minister of Highways and Public
Works will respond to Recommendations 2 to 11, and the Minis-
ter of Renewable Resources will respond to Recommendatlons
12 to 15.

With respect to Recommendation Number 1, Mr. Speaker,
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Ministers have had full signing authority since mid-1980 for the
funds appropriated to their departments. The Committee be-
lieves that the Ministers should be responsible for all delega-
tions of financial signing authorities within the departments.
At this time, Deputy Ministers have been given this delegation
authority. The Government will once again review this proce-
dure, and will respond to the Committee in the next Report.

Mr. Speaker, I would like to close my comments by thanking
the Committee Members for their efforts in conducting the
hearings, and their extensive Report to this House.

:Mr. Falle: Mr. Speaker, I would like to speak to the report. I
have been a Member on the Committee; on and off, replacing
.one Member or the other — now, I'guess I am a permanent
Member on the Committee. It has been a pleasure working on
the Committee. One of the things that struck me most of all
with working on the Commiittee: it lends a lot of credibility to
the Government, and it makes, in my opinion, the civil ser-
vants and the expenditure of our money accountable to this
Public Accounts Committee.

They have been cooperative. The ones that have not, we put
on a hot seat. I really believe that one of the main outcomesof a
public committee like this is that it lends more credibility to
our Government system.

Hon. Mr. Lattin: Mr. Speaker, this being the first Report of
the Public Accounts Committee for Highways and Public
Works and also the first Report that I have had the honour to
review as a Minister, I would like to make a.few remarks and
observations before I get down to recommendations.

Mr. Speaker, I had the honour to be on the first Public
Accounts Committee and I found it to be a very satlsfymg
experience indeed.

One of the most obvious and notable experiences I had was
the complete enthusiasm and the dedication of the Members on
the Public Accounts Committee. I see by this Report that this
has followed through. There was no personal friction and no
party politics. I cite two reasons for this: I think one of the
reasons is in Yukon, because we are a small number, we have
an affinity for one another that does not exist in other jurisdic-
tions. Secondly, Mr. Speaker, party politics is new here, and I
feel that, in a committee like that , people have the concerns of
the Yukon before party politics, and I think this has been very
effective in making this Committee as effective and as work-
able as we have witnessed in the two Reports.

Mr. Speaker, I think this Committee does two things. I would
say it enlightens the Members on the Committee as to the
workings of Government; and, from a department’s stand-
point, they realize that these people are looking at their depart-
ments in order to understand them, in order to see how they
work, not so much to criticize them. I think the departments
themselves, Mr. Speaker, have a tendency to pull up their
socks and take alittle better look at their own department, and
by looking at their own department, they operate more effi-
ciently. With these departments operating more efficiently
and more accountable, both the Government as a whole and
everybody in Yukon benefits.

Mr. Speaker, gettmg down to the particular recommenda-
tions that there were in my department, on Recommendation
Number 2, I think there is a little bit of confusion there because

amaintenance plan and programming for the Alaska Highway,

is done by the Yukon Department of Highways, and not Public

Works. The department and I are not quite sure where this .

statement came from, but the department agrees that a data
basis of information required for long-term planning should be
built up, when the resources to carry out this work are avail-
able. This would allow long-term planning at a future date,
when such planning would become cost-effective.

Mr. Speaker, also in connection with this, I would suggest
that Number 3 would be applicable when this data bank is
applied; we agree wholeheartedly.

I am going on to' Recommendation Number 4. The depart-
ment presently estimates its manpower requirements for
highway maintenance only on a basis of overall activity re-
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quirements for the entire highway system. Mr. Speaker, there
seems to be some confusion in this thing; I think the Commit-
tee, at the time, had some problems. We view this statement as
not specifically correct.

" Resources of all types are established by camp. The re-
sources, labour, equipment, and material vary from year to
year and season to season, depending on the schedule activities
of such road sections. This directs the need for a basic permit
for it in each camp, supplemented by casual staff, mobile
camps for specialized work.

Mr. Speaker, the recommendation regarding the road equip-
ment: I'think that in the Budget that we have just passed, there
was a lot more information presented; in future we will be
reviewing this, and I would hope that we will be able to give a
little bit more information on this subject. I think that all the
Members will agree that this year everybody in the House was
able to recognize what we were doing with this particular
account, because the facts were put in the Budget so everybody
could see.

Continuing on, Mr. Speaker, I believe the Committee spent a
lot of time on this recommendation, and the department'feels
that perhaps they were a little remiss in not getting across to
the people the difference between maintenance classification
and construction classification; we felt, in reviewing the Re-
port, that this seemed to be. The only thing I can say about that,
Mr. Speaker, is that I had a long talk with my Deputy and he
said that he would be prepared to do one of two things: try to
give them a written explanation so that they would gét a better
understanding, or, on an informal basis, he would be glad to see
if he could not get the two classifications explained so that
everybody understood what it was all about.

On the next recommendation on Page 17, detailed budget
calculations for 1981-82 are based on individual estimates for
each camp. Cost reports would be made on the same basis. We
hope to be able to obtain a computer print-out which will give
costs for each road in the system. The computer program has
not been de-bugged as yet, so we cannot fully get the informa-
tion that we desire, but we are hopmg that it can be produced
later on in the year.

On Recommeéndation Number 8: we will certainly consider
this recommendation.

Recommendations 9 and 10: Mr. Speaker, as a department,
we felt that these almost touch on the political policy rather
than the department, and it is something that I think that,
rather than the department looking at it, probably the Minister
in charge should take them forward and address these two
concerns. '

Recommendation Number 10: with the present program and
funding levels, the cost of maintaining in-house expertise in all
engineering required to meet these recommendations would
be prohibitive. This recommendation can be considered, and
staffing increased in stages as justified in the future.

Mr. Speaker, I think also that was the particular one that we
were talking about to review the Dawson water and sewer.
When this is finished and we have a report on it, we will certain-
ly be glad to table it for the Committee’s consideration.

Mr. Speaker, all in all, on behalf of my department and my
Deputies, I would like to thank the Committee for the frank and
courteous way they treated us; we hope, in turn, that we have
been able to give them some msnght of how the department
operates.

Thank you. .

"Mr. Veale: - Mr. Speaker, if I could just comment on the
Department of Highways and Public Works aspects of the
recommendations: Recommendation Number 7 I consider to
be very important, because that was one of the problems, I
think, in the Budget estimates as presented last month. There
was no breakdown on a highway to highway basis, and while
the Minister provided me with details of some $1,740,000 ex-
penditure on the Dempster Highway for maintenance, it really
does not help, unless you have comparisons to make to other
remote highways which have the difficulties encountered on
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the Dempster So I think that recommendation is certalnly a
solid one.
Recommendations 9, 10 and 11: the Mmlster has 1nd1cated

that they are not really matters for his department but rather

are a question of policy to be dealt wjth, presumably, at the
Cabinet level. I wold urge very strongly that the Minister and
Cabinet consider 9, 10 and 11 as a package, the three of them
together, because it seems to me they all relate to the problems.
that have occurred, not just in Dawson City with sewer and
water, but presumably it would apply to Watson Lake and
Haines Junction as well. It seems to me it is an area that the
Government could develop some expertise in, because there. is
probably going to be a great deal of that sort of cap1tal con-
struction taking place in the future. : s

The recommendation — just to deal with it, and I am sure the
Minister of Renewable Resources will - for a solid wildlife data
base, I consider that to be extremely important, and I am sure
the Minister does as well, and will be moving towards that..

“I'am not'sure if the Government Leader dealt with the Inter-
nal Audit Committee in his comments. There was a section of
the’ report that indicated there had not been a. meeting. Did
you? 7 - o

So-c Member: No

Mr. Veale: My feeling is that that Commlttee should some-
how be upgraded and in complete agreement with the Commit-
tee Report, so that the audlt functions could be examined more
closely. . ' ,

Thank you, Mr. Speaker.

. Hon. Mr. Lang: Ihave a number of comments w1th respect
to the Department of Renewable Resources and the recom-
mendations made by the Committee. The first recommenda-
tion indicates that departments should undertake only those
activities which clearly fall within its mandate, and state the
goals accordingly. Perhaps it was not explained well enough,
but the point that has to be made here for Members is that the
department acts in an advisory capacity. in conjunction with
the Government of Canada— some aspects of Forestry, as well
as land, water and to a certain extent, land use. For an exam-
ple, we do have a direct role in enforcement in the area of
fisheries, so there is an overlap there. It has to be understood
that, as time goes on, that overlap will probably become grea-
ter, as we begin to negotiate, for example, the transfer of
fisheries, which from our perspective is more important to
come under our management, but during that transition
period, we are going to have to work in conjunction with the
Government of Canada, in those areas that are amenable to
both Goverriments.

The other recommendation, with respect to defining its
ob]ectwes and terms of activities for which funding is re-
quested, to mete the performance against these objectives, is a
difficult one for the department. They will attempt to meet the
" recommendation of the Committee, but there are a lot of things
that happen especially in the area of wildlife management,
which are to some degree intangible. It has to be understood
that there are some problems meeting, in a totally pragmatic
way, the request of the Committee, but we will go to some
lengths to see how we can'accommodate the recommendation.
" I want tomake some comments on the developing of a solid
wildlife data base. We do have problems, but I think they are
becoming a lot fewer than they were in the past. To give an
example, six years ago there was only one biologist on staff
with the Government of the Yukon Territory. Now we have 13
technicians and biologists on staff, along with the enforcement
side of the department, in the Wildlife Branch, of about another
120r 14 enforcem'ent‘ofﬁcers. So you can see we have gone a
long way, as far as allocating money to the department to get
~ the necessary staff to do the proper management of the all-
important resource of wildlife.

Along with that I should point out that we are puttmg top
priority to the collection of data. We are well ahead with the
information that is so critical for sheep management. We are
taking a priority in the area of the moose population which is, in

:Mr. Speaker, I mean ‘‘the Clerk”’ —
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some areas — I should not use the word ‘‘threatened’’ — under
some pressure by resident and non-resident hunters, and we
are going to get a firm data base in both those particular areas
that are under a lot of pressure, and those areas that would
appear to be coming under pressure in the very near future. :

.We can.accommodate the request of the Committee. I should
pointout that it has been a high priority of the Government’s to
bring forward a Budget with this department, and I think it has
been indicated in the short term that we have been in office.

1 should further point out with respect to management: as
you know, we are reviewing the whole concept of the outfitting
industry. I am confident that, over the course of this month, we
can come up with a pretty acceptable pollcy Along with that,
management is a factor, and it is one that'is being discussed
very seriously with the outfitting industry, because it is to their
benefit as well as ours that the game be managed in a manner
that is not only thmklng of tomorrow, but'is also thinking of the
long-term benefit of the Yukon Territory.

Also the recommendation that the départment review 1ts
hunting licence fees and look at a reasonable return for the
public purse on the authorization of hunting licences: this is
definitely under consideration by the department. I should also
alert Members, Mr. Speaker, that thisis also a consideration in
discussions with the outfitting industry on the review we are
presently doing, so that we recover the necessary resources to
help offset the cost that we have to bear for management of the
wildlife resource.. .

So, over-all, Mr. Speaker, I think we can, in a large part,
meet many of the objectives of the Committee. The first two

.are pretty philosophical, but we will try to clearly delineate the

objectives as best we can; however, it must be understood that
there are intangibles involved. It is quite difficult to get it all in
black and white, as to just exactly what does take place in the
area of game management.

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. . ‘

Mro. McGuire: Mr. Speaker, I just want to make a recom-
mendation-on the Report that perhaps, in the future, the Public
Accounts Report could be prepared and tabled in this House
before the Government Budget is presented. If that could be

. arranged, it would certainly cut down on the time needed for

reviewing the Budget. If Members had a chance to study the
Report beforehand, it would eliminate duplication of questlons
and we could perhaps spend more time on policy questlons in
the Budget.

Mr. Penikett: : Mr. Speaker, I want to first thank the Minis-
ters and other Members for their responses. The Ministers’
responses will, first of all, provide a very good starting point
for the Committee next year. I appreciate them more than
even their critical comments, which are probably well-taken.

The Member for Kluane has, I think, made an extremely
useful suggestion. The only restraint in our being able to
achieve it —because it is really up to the Committee to get its
work done on time, in order to be able to do what she has asked
—isthe date of the hearings and the date of the Session. If those
two fall too closely together, it seems to me it would be practi-
cally impossible — I say the ‘‘Committee’, but, let me be clear,
to put the report together.
One of the problems with its’ being Budget time is that there is
a.great volume of paper being produced and prepared and
going through the printing system here. Sometimes we can
have delays in getting the thing manufactured. However, I

. think the suggestion would be an extremely useful one in‘im-

proving the cyclical flow of information for Members. Even if
we cannot have the report tabled and printed prior to our
beginning the Budget debate, perhaps, subject to the approval
of the Committee, we could at least undertake to have the
report, in whatever form it may be at'the time, available to

Members in draft form. That may also assist Ministers as well

in preparing their responses, so that we can guarantee that the
report will be debated during the Sessnon

.- Thank you, Mr. Speaker.

‘Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member hav1ng twice
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spoken, debate is now closed.

Motion agreed to

Mr. Clerk: Item No.3, standing in the name of Mr Graham

Mr. Speaker: Is the Honourable Member prepared to deal
with Item 3? :

Mr. Graham: ] am.

Motion Number 13

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable Mem-
ber for Whitehorse Porter Creek West, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Member for Whitehorse West, that the Seventh Report
of the Standing Committee on Rules, Elections and Privileges
be concurred in.

Mr. Graham: Mr. Speaker, at first glance, the Seventh Re-
port of the Standing Committee on Rules, Elections and Pri-
vileges may seem to be a bit of a cop-out, in that the main
recommendation was that the Government of the Yukon
undertake to'develop a pension plan for Members which would
be submitted to the Assembly in legislative form; however,
Mr. Speaker, let me assure you that that is not the case.

The Committee met and discussed the subject of a pension
plan for Members at great length over a two-year period. I
think we considered it at some ten meetings. During that time,
we concluded that a pension plan for MLAs in this Legislature
is a very desirable objective, because we feel that a person
holding a seat here in the Legislature often sacrifices access to
pension plans which are normally available to other Members
of the public service and members of the public.

We felt especially that the long service. to citizens of this
Territory by MLAs should be recognized in the form of a pen-
sion plan.

We found it very difficult though, Mr. Speaker, to formulate
specific proposals for a pension plan, because we found that
there were so many options available to usthat we simply did
not have the expertise, nor the funds at our disposal to hire
expertise, to come up with specific recommendations. ‘We
therefore felt that if we turned over all of the information and
the resources that we have gathered over the past two year
period, to the Government, and requested that the Govern-
ment, with their expertise, come up with a legislative package,
that would be much the preferable route.

Mr. Speaker, in conclusion, I will state the recommendations
as they appear:

- that the Assembly support the concept of a pension plan for
Members of the Yukon Legislative Assembly — the committee
unanimously approved these recommendations I might add
and
. -that the Government of Yukon undertake to develop such a
pension plan.

We feel, Mr. Speaker, that there is a certain amount of urgen-
cy to these recommendations, and we hope that the Govern-
ment will bring in such a plan in the next year. :

Mr. Penikett: I rise in support of the motion. As the secon-
der, I would explain, or share the explanation of the Member
opposite who spoke, that we have gone round and round and
round on this question a good number of times. At one time I
believed that I was far too young to be considering the question
of pensions. Having aged ten years in my two years in this
place, I have somewhat changed my views.

I think we all agreed that there are certain persons in this
community who are no longer Members of this House, but who
served this place faithfully and well for a good number of
years, and while serving this place had their eamirig potential
considerably reduced and employment opportunities con-
siderably diminished, and who, following their departure, by
design or electoral accident, lived out their remaining years in
less than comfortable circumstances.

The Member for Klondike will know of at least a couple of
former Members, who have resided in that area.

1 am persuaded that those persons who serve their commun-
ity, in whatever capacity, especially if they serve it for a long
term, should not be expected to retire to poverty just for having
had the privilege of having their name in the paper a few times.
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There can be, potentially, I think, very embarrassing consequ-
ences for the community. Irecall one time that there was much
of a scandal in Great Britain when a former Prime Minister
found that he had to accept directorships with a number of
fairly unsavoury companies, just in order to pay his own bills,
which had been acquired in a life of politics. The fact was that
this person’s talents were not really in demand with these
corporations, but what they really wanted was to be able to use
his name on the letterhead; that was a most unfortunate cir-
cumstance.

I must tell you, even though it was for a worthy cause, how
disturbed I was to have seen a former Governer General doing
Coca-Cola ads.

The problem, it seems to me, is that people who have served
the community for a long long time and who have given up very
many other economic opportunities as aresult of that, ought at
the very least to be able to obtain the kind of pension that takes
care of their basic needs. We talk a lot about the conflicts
involved for a Cabinet Minister, and protecting Cabinet Mem-
bers from any appearances of wrong-doing, but I think there is
at least a potential problem in wanting to make sure, too, that
you protect former Members from being employed in un-
acceptable fashions by virtue of their previous office.

Whenever we looked, Mr. Speaker, at the practicalities, the
details, the particulars of pension plans, I think all Members of
the Committee were daunted by the complexities, the costs,
the details. I at least can speak for myself, that I did not feei
able at any point to come to grips with the particulars, because
we kept seeing things from our own individual point of view and
did not have a big enough picture of the costs.

1think the financing of pension plans is an extremely compli-
cated business. It is something on which I feel this House
should get the best advice available to it. I would assume that
there is some of that advice available in the Department of
Finance, and, if it is not there, the Department of Finance has
available to it that kind of advice. I would hope that the Govern-
ment will be able to come up with a particular proposal that we
will be able to debate — hopefully before the end of the life of
this Legislature. '

1 think possibly that no Member of this House is going to be in
the position to collect such a pension, because they are all going
to be here, along with their peers, for years and years and
years. 1 say that facetiously, Mr. Speaker, because I really do
not think that has been the experience of this place. When'I
consider that there is only one Member of the House, yourself,
sir, who has won more territorial elections in this place than
me, it really gives me an insight into how short political
careers can be here. ’

1t is not short political careers we are considering, it is the
long careers: the person who has served for a long time, who
did not go into it planning that way, but who got involved and
gave up a life’s work for the community, and, unlike any public
servant or anybody employed by a large private concern, has
no pension-to fall back on. '

Thank you, Mr. Speaker.

Motion agreed to

Mr. Speaker: May I have your further pleasure?

‘Mr. Graham: Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Member for Mayo, that Mr. Speaker do now leave the
Chair and that the House resolve into Committee of the Whole.

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable Mem-
ber for Whitehorse Porter Creek West, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Member for Mayo, that Mr. Speaker do now leave the
Chair and that the House resolve into Committee of the Whole.

Motion agreed to

Mr. Speaker leaves the Chair

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Mr. Chairman: I call the Commiittee of the Whole to order.

This afternoon, the Committee will be studying Bills Number
15, 18; 19 and 21.
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I would like to call a short recess at thlS tlme

Recess

Bill Number 15: Petty 'l'rupau Ordln-nco

Mr. Chatrman: I will now call the Committee of the Whole
to order. On Bill Number 15, we have a witness here — Jim
Almstrom. I would like to proceed with Clause 2; re-open the
clause. As far as I understand we have some amendments to
the clause.

On Clause 2 )

Hon. Mr. Pearson: Mr. Chalrman it is my understandmg
that all Members have been provided with a series of one, two,
three, four, five amendments to this bill. I would like to start
out, Mr. Chairman, at Clause 2(1) by moving that Bill Number
15, entitled Petty Trespass Ordinance be amended in Clause
2(1) at'page 1 by striking out the definition of “‘authorized
person’’ and substituting therefor, ¢* ‘authorized person’

means school admmlstratlon teaching and maintenance per-

sonnel”’.
Mr. Chairman: It has been moved by the Honourable Mr.

Pearson that Bill Number 15, entitled Petty Trespass Ordi- .

nance be amended in Clause 2(1) on page 1 by striking out the
deﬁmtlon of ‘‘authorized person’’ and substituting the follow-

ing: ‘ ‘authorized person’ means school admlmstratlon,‘

teaching and maintenance personnel’’.

Hon. Mr. Pearson: Mr. Chairman, I should point out to
Committee that this series of amendments is designed to dra-
matically reduce the scope of this legislation. In fact, it will
become evident during the discussion and the passing of ‘the
amendments, that it will be reduced to schools, vocational
schools, universities, colleges, trade schools, or premises;used
for other educational purposes. That will be the only place
where this legislation will be applicable.

Mr. Chairman, we had a considerable amount of discussion
yesterday, and, as I indicated, I thought it was very construc-
tive and of great interest to this Government. As a result of that
discussion, we have reconsidered our position with respect to
this bill, and are suggesting now that we should attempttoget a
piece of legislation in place that will in fact address the im-
mediate concerns of everyone, with respect to our schools and
school populations.

Mr. Chairman, we have some other concerns; they have
been enunciated with respect to shops, shop keepers, res-

taurants and so on and so forth, but we do run into some major
problems in expanding the legislation. It is not quite as

straightforward and as easy as we would like it to be. We put

thislegislation together with a tremendous amount of coopera-.

tion from the police authorities, and I would be loathe to ex-
pand it without considerably more discussion with them.-

Iwould like to say, Mr. Chairman, that we, as a Government,
will seriously consider exactly what we can do during the forth-
coming montbhs, to afford some sort of protection that has been
indicated as being desirable to people who own other property.

Mr. Fleming: Iam prepared to support it in this sense, but I
wished before to have everything included or, more or less,
nothing; but if it is a provision just for our schools that is
needed, then I would be quite prepared to support it.

I am wondering, though: in Committee, we passed sections
yesterday, 2(1) and so forth, and does it not take anything to
rescind that, before we go ahead and carry on with an amend-
ment like this? Would it not take unanimous consent to do that?
I think maybe it should.

Mr. Chaitrman: Yes, I believe it takes unammous consent,

In order to re-open the clauses that have been discussed
before, the Committee’s rule is to seek unanimous consent
from the House. Do we have unanimous consent to re-open
Clause 2?

Some Members: Agreed. :

Mr.Vezle: My only comment, Mr. Chairman, is that I think
it is a wise move on the Government’s part to restrict the
legislation to a school trespass ordinance.

That is certainly the initial inspiration for the leglslatlon and
itisbadly required, and I understand it to be an undertaking of
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" the Government Leader to propose further legislation in the

next Session for other premises; that Ilock forward to as well.

Amendment agreed to

Mr.Chairman: Iunderstand that, under Clause2, the Mem-
ber has another amendment on that same clause. Do you have
further comment, sir? .

Hon.Mr. Pearson: Mr. Chairman, I move that Bill Number
15, entitled Petty Trespass Ordinance, be amended at Clause
2(1) at Page 1, by striking out the definition of ‘‘trespass’’ and
substituting the following: |

“Trespass includes entering, or remammg without lawful
authorlty, on premises referred to in subsection (3)(1).”

Myr. Chairman: ' It has been moved by the Honourable Mr.

- Pearson that Bill Number 15, entitled Petty Trespass Ordi-

nance be amended in Clause 2(1) at page 1, by striking out the
definition of “‘trespass” and substituting the following:

“Trespass includes entering, or remaining without lawful
authority, on premises referred to in subsectlon 3(1)”

Amendment agreed to-

Clause 2 agreed to

Hon.Mr. Pearson: Mr. Chairman; I move that Bill Number
15, entitled Petty Trespass Ordinance, be amended at Clause
3(1) at Page 1 by striking out paragraph (a) and by striking out
the reference ““(b)"".

Mr. Chalrman: It has been moved by the Honourable Mr.
Pearson that Bill Number 15, entitled Petty Trespass Ordi-
nance, be amended in Clause 3(1) at Page 1 by striking out
paragraph (a) and by striking the reference ‘(b)"".

Any discussion on the amendment?

Mr. Penikett: I am going to ask a question whichIam going
to have trouble restricting to this clause, Mr. Chairman, but I
am trying to look ahead a little bit to the changes being prop-
osed here, including the change in the title.

It is not clear to me what is to be the fate of the sections
dealing with the pickup trucks and so forth. Well, it is a serious’
question, Mr. Chairman, because it seems to me we are deal-
ing properly with a question of the schools, but sore of the
sections about the parked motor vehicles and so forth were
really designed, not for the school situation, as I understand ‘
but an entirely separate situation.

Hon. Mr. Pearson: Mr. Chairman, the Motor Vehicles
parking section is designed specifically for the schools.

Mr. Penikett: I am glad to hear that, Mr. Chairman. I
understood differently when we were talking about the alrport
and apartments and so forth.

Hon. Mr. Pearson: Mr. Chairman, we were not talking ab-
out the airport parking, it was the Honourable Member who
was talking about the airport parking.

Mr. Penikett: Mr. Chairman, I agree I was talking about it,
but everybody seemed to be listening, and that is why I thought
we were talking about the same thing.

Amendment agreed.to -

Clause 3 agreed to

‘Mr.Chatrman: Pursuantto Standmg Orders Iwould like to
have unanimous consent to re-open Clause 1. Do we have
unanimous consent? -

Members: Agreed.

On Clause 1 , :

Hon.Mr.Pearson: Mr.Chairman, I move that Bill Number
15, entitled Petty.Trespass Ordinance, be amended in Clause
1(1) at Page 1 by striking out the word ‘‘Petty’’ and substitut-
ing for it the:word “‘School’’.

Mr. Chairman:: It has been moved by the Honourable Mr.
Pearson that Bill Number 15, entitled Petty Trespass Ordi-
nance, be amended in Clause 1(1) on Page 1 by striking out the
word “Petty’”’ and substituting for it the word “School”

Amendment agreed to - :

Clause 1 agreed to o

Hon. Mr, Pearson: Mr. Chairman, I move that the title to
Bill Number 15, entitled Petty Trespass Ordinance be
amended-to read School Trespass Ordinance.

Mr. Chairman: . It has been moved by the Honourable Mr.
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Pearson that the title to Bill Number 15, entitled Petty Tres-
pass Ordinance be amended ‘to read School Trespass Ordz-
nance.

Mr. Penikett:
moving an amendment to the title, which I think would have
precedence over the Government Leader’s amendment,
however, I would accept that this is a better amendment, and
would therefore withdraw it and support this motlon

Amendment agreed to

Hon. Mr. Pearson: - Mr. Chairman, I move that you report
Bill Number 15, with amendment, in¢luding an amendment to
the title. :

Mr. Chairman: It has been moved by Mr. Pearson that the

Chairman do now report Bill Number 15, Petty Trespass Ordi- _

nance, out of Committee with amendment, including amend-
ment to the title of the bill.

Motion agreed to

Bill Number 18: An Ordinance to Amond tllc I’loncer Uﬂl-
ity Grant Ordinance

Mr. Chatrman: Irefer Commlttee to Bill Number 18 at this
time, An Ordinance to Amend the Pioneer Utility Grant Ordi-
nance. :

Hon. Mr. Pearson: Mr. Chairman, before we get into the
general debate on Bill Number 18, I wonder if you wish to
excuse the witness, with-our thanks?

Mr. Chairman: I would like to excuse our witness at this
time. - ’ = . ’ '
" OnClause 1

Hon. Mrs. McCall: The Pioneer Utility Grant Ordinance: it
is a small amendment, required to increase the amount
‘granted and to correct:an ambiguity in the ordinance.

Clause 1 agreed to '

On Clause 2

Clause 2 agreed to

'On Clause 3

Clause 3 agreed to

Mr. Fleming: I was readlng and I thought we had more to
go.

Mr. Chairman: Would you like to go back to Clause 3, sir?

Mr. Fleming: I did have a question, yes.

Mr. Chairman: .-Does the Honourable Member have unani-
mous consent? ) . 4

Some Members: Agreed. '

On Clause 3 - '

Mr. Fleming: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I am just a little confused as to the wording on Clause 3(1). It
is quite long; however it is the last part that confused me.

..notwithstanding that the applicant has not attained the age
'of 65 years or is the surviving spouse of a person who dies
‘before January 1, 1981.”.

‘If I could get clarification of this, because something in my
mind tells me that if it was after January1, 1981, if it was 1982,
that it would probably be a problem. I think the Mlnlster is all
ready to give me the clarification.

Hon. Mrs. McCall: Yes, Mr. Chalrman, the ‘Honourable
Member brought that to my attention, and I now know what it
refers to. Clause 10(1) grandfathers three people who thought
they qualified, and had been paid under the ambiguity that
existed before. There were just three people altogether; I be-
lieve it is three. So this grandfathers those three people and
they would be under 65.

Mr. Fleming: I appreciate the answer and yet I am Stlll a i

little doubtful as to the wording. Somebody who passed away in

1982 or 1983, for instance, — then would that other personwho is

probably 62 or 63 years old, be eligible for that in continuance?

This is what worries me a little. It is probably just my mis-

understanding, but it seems to be the way it is worded, that

possibly if one of them passed away after J anuary 1, 1981, the y

other one would not be eligible.

Hon. Mrs. McCall: Mr. Chairman, I know it refers to the
grandfathering of the people who thought that they could apply
for the grant, and did because of the ambiguity. These are

I had prev1ously 1nd1cated my intention of
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people who perhaps have applied for it over a period of two or
three years — I do not know how long — and now they are
between 60.and 65, so I think it is really to cover not taking it
away fromthem at this point, since they had already received
it due to the ambiguity.

Clause 3 agreed to

Mr. Chairman: Shall the title of the bill carry?

Members: Agreed.

My. Chairman: I declare the title of the bill carried.

Hon. Mrs. McCall: - Mr. Chairman, I move that you report

Bill Number 18 without amendment.

Mr. Chairman: It has been moved by the Honourable Mrs.
McCall that the Chairman do now report Bill Number 18, An
Ordinanceto Amend the Pioneer Utility Grant Ordinance with-
out amendment.

‘Motion agreed to

Bill Number 19: Municipal Finance Ordinance

Mr. Chatrman: I refer Committee to Bill Number 19, the
Municipal Finance Ordinance. I understand the Honourable
Member has a witness, and the Chairman does have a certifi-
cate from.the Member regarding the matter.

Hon.Myr. Lattin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman; that is correct,
I have asked for a witness, Mr. Rob McWilliam of our depart-
ment He will be here presently.

' While'l am on my feet, I had a couple of questions a couple of
days ago in Committee of the Whole. I now have answers for
those questions, and would ask the Pages to pass them out to
the Members, please.

Mr. Chatrman: Referring Committee to Bill Number 19,
Clause 1(1) on Page 1. First we wnll have general debate on the
bill. -
"On Clause'1 :

' Hom.Mr, Lattin: Mr. Chairman, I can only reiterate what I
said yesterday at second reading, so I think I will just wait for

-questions and try:to answer them. I will have my witness here

to answer some questions for Members.
Mr. Veale: ‘Mr. Chairman, generally speaking, I think it
should be stated that the supplying of the White Paper on the

" Municipal Finance Program and the detailed financial cal-

culations in the'schedule were of great use in determining what
the impact of the ordinance would be, because some of the
tlauses are extremely convoluted and difficult to follow with-
‘out having the figures actually prepared for you. I would hope

- that the next amendment to the Lands Ordinance would pro-
-vide the same information.

Hon. Mr. Pearson: Mr. Chairman, I must rise now to the
occasion. I noticed in an article in one of the local newspapers

- that I was accused by the press — not by this Committee, and I
- -appreciate that — of just sitting here stubbornly withholding

information from the Committee, and refusing to table these
regulations. I want to say once again, Mr. Chairman, very very

~emphatically that those regulations, no matter what the Hon-

ourable Members on the other side might like to think, are not
finished. They are not ready for tabling, and that is the only

" reasonthat we have not tabled them, or given that information

to the Honourable Members. We just do not have it to give to
them as yet.

" Mr. Chairman: Before we resume on the general debate of
Clause 1, I would like to ask unanimous consent of Committee

to have the witness appear. Do I have unanimous consent?

__S_o-. Members: Agreed.
" Mr. Chatrman: [ would like to welcome Mr. McWilliam as

‘ w1tness for Bill Number 19. .

' Mr. Byblow: .I just want to conﬁrm with the Minister the
revenue base for the ordinance. He indicated yesterday in his
second reading address, and 1 believe it is indicated in the
White Paper, that in addition to the existing per capita grant
money that is available, there will be an additional $750,000
injected into the pot, as it were, and that all of this is going to
take effect next April 1. Is what I have said correct?

Hon.Mr. Lattin: Yes, Mr. Chairman, what you have said is
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correct. Next year, 1982, is when it will take effect. This year
we are still working under the old ordinance. -

As you are aware, part of the new Municipal O‘rdinqnce will
take effect next fall; that particular part will be the process of
running elections in the various places. The new Municipal
Ordinance will take effect in April, 1982. ;

Mr. Byblow: Still related to the funding: will the total
amount of money set into place in this pot, include the monies
that will be required under Part 2, Special Programs, over and
above the basic operating and supplementary dwellmg
money?

Mr. McWilliam: As the White Paper-indicates, those addl-
tional conditional funds, which will be provided for piped water
and sewer services, were calculated as part of that original pot
of money.

Mr. Byblow: What happens in the event that there is not
enough money in the total pot to provide for the special financ-

.ing: the basic financing in the event of the formula, when

applied, does not have enough money to pay out. Does that then
create supplementary financing, to be voted through this
Legislature? : .

Mr. McWilliam: If I understand the question correctly, I
would say that ‘‘yes”, if there was a necessity for additional
conditional funding, it would be the Legislature that would be
presented with it. What we have looked at is how much money
is necessary to establish this program originally. Our calcula-
tions are based on that.

Hon. Mr. Pearson: I might be able to help clarify that, and
then again I might muddy the water a little bit with an answer,
but I will try. When we get into this thing a little way, Mr.
Chairman, it will become obvious that we have evolved a for-
mula for either increasing or decreasing the size of this pot
each year, depending upon what is happéning in the Territory
generally. In fact the size of this pot w1ll be tied dlrectly to the
finances of YTG.

The thing that we must be most concemed withis whether in
fact we have got the right number for the first year. That is the
arbitrary number from our point of view — that we have the
right amount of money in that pot that first year. That amount
of money is fair and it is equitable for the communities, based
on what has transpired in the past. The municipalities-and the
communities have been locked into a scheme that has not seen
any increase for so many years, that we felt that we actually
had to look at determining an amount of money that would
raise that total pot to what we thought would be a fair and
equitable level, so that the municipalities can finance them-
selves properly, and also so that we, as a Government, are
assisting them in their own aspirations. We very much want to
do that. That is where the $750,000 came from. We said, ‘‘Look
we will take whatever amount of money we have this year, we
will add to that $750,000, and that will be the start of the pot.””

Then, asis indicated in the White Paper, we will tie the size of
that pot to what is happening in this Government. Another
Government may well change that particular policy. That is
something that is subject to change. _ ,

Myr. Veale: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if the Minister or the
witness might just reiterate how the $750,000 was actually ar-
rived at? The White Paper says ‘‘additional funds for infla-

tion’’. Was there, in fact, a calculation based on the per capita

grants and taking inflation into cons1deratlon, or was it just
out-of-the-hat, so to speak"

Homn,Mr. Lattin: No, Mr. Chairman, the bas1c phllosophy of
adding this money was to take into account the inflation that
has occurred over the last, say, six or seven years. Now, there
are various ways that youcould do that. After considering all of
them, we used the implicit price index scale as a:base and

came to a ball park figure, and that ball:park figure was ad-

justed to the figure of three-quarters of a mllllon dollars.
Basically, we utilized that fofmula to put us in the ball park,
and then we rounded it off to that particular amount. .~

Mr. Veale: Just to follow it up, could the Minister elaborate -

on the implicit price index scale and what that is?
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Mr. McWilliams: The implicit price index for residential
construction, which is what we are using for our calculations,
is an index which Statistics Canada provides on a yearly basis.
They have been doing it.since 1971, so we had it over a compara-
ble period with the municipal aid grants from 1972.

The actual formula for how it is arrived at is extremely
detalled It takes into consideration a varlety of factors, such

as costs of construction, et cetera.

Mr. Veale: - So, I take it then that the initial $42 per capital
grant, whatever it was, was just built up. In other words, the

. 1972 level of the per capita grant is being accepted as a valid

expenditure, or at least an expendlture that was meeting muni-
cipal needs in.1972. . .

Mr. McWilliam: As the White Paper mdlcates we really do
not know on what basis the $46 and $40 formula was used in

.1972. As the Minister has just previously indicated, we attemp-
* ted to provide for a factor of inflation and population increase,

and then Cabinet made the decision as to how much additional
money was necessary to-bring this up to a realistic figure.
Mr. Penikett: Mr. Chairman, I was very interested in Mr.
McWilliam’s reference to the Statistics Canada figures. I have
some information which would indicate what Statistics Cana-
da recently reported, on a Canada-wide survey-of provincial
grants to local governments in 1978-79. I noted in: that report
that every provincial government except Canada — well the
two provinces giving the lowest level of grants to municipali-

. ties were, I'think, Newfoundland and British Columbia. In the
' past, we have based a fair amount of legislation on the British

Columbia model. But since you have indicated some acquaint-
ance with Statistics Canada data in this area, I wonder, Mr.
Chairman, if the witness would be prepared to indicate where
we would rank as compared with the provinces now, interms of
the global figures.

' Mr. McWilliam: I would have difficulty doing that off the
top of my head, Mr. Chairman, but the figures that are pro-
duced for the provinces are given in millions of dollars: Those

~would have to be reduced back to some sort of per capita basis,

so we would know exactly what the ranking was.

Mr. Penikett: Thank you. I know Mr. McWilliam could not
give me a precise answer, but he sounds like he is acquainted
with the figures, and I just wondered whether he has any idea
where we would rank.

Mr. McWilliam: ‘I know the figures that Mr. Pemkett is
referring to, but off the top of my head I would only be hazard-
ing a guess, and I do not think it- would be something that I
would want to stake my reputation on.

Mr. Penikett: Perhaps the Mlmster would be w1llmg to
stake his, Mr. Chairman.

What I am interested in is whether we would now be near the
top of the ten, or have we started off from a very low position? I
donot need the exact numbers, but I just wondered whether the

_ Minister would know. I will tell you why I am asking the Minis-

ter: whenIsaw this pressrelease, I wrote to Statistics Canada,
but they are much slower in answermg their mail than Mem-
bers opposnte

Hon. My. Lattin: "No, Mr. Chalrman I do not know. If we
can get the information — and I am not saying we can get it —
but if we can; I will certamly bring it back to the Member,
either privately or in the House, if we are still in Session.

Mr. Fleming: Mr. Chairman, I am just wondering about

vthls This‘is just an ‘example, 1 _presume, of how the standard

expendlture per class could be calculated? I am assuming this
is only an example. I assume it is hot correct that in Teslin
there are 109 dwellmgs Iam wondermg if the 97 per dwelling is
also an example or is that the proper figure?

Mr. McWilliam: What we were attempting to do with the
White Paper was to demonstrate how the calculations could be

arrived at using this legislation. The figures that are in the

White Paper are subject to some final review and some dealing
with the community, when we are preparing the actual regula-
tions. The specific ones that you ask about in terms of dwelling
units: those are what a manual count of the assessment re-
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cords for those communities showed as dwelling units, as de-
fined by this legislation.

The dollars that are in there for standard expenditures are
based on what we could extract from their 1979 audits.

Mr. Fleming: I presume from what you say that, if this
thing was doled out at $40 per person or something, you would
try to balance it off now by using the dwelling as one and
making the money, say three times as much as it was before, if
you have three people in each dwelling. Is that the way you are
planning to bring it out?

Mr. McWilliam: The whole concept of this legislation is to
get away from using population, and to tie it to something we
feel can be reflected on a more current basis, and also-which
gets to the essential raison d’etre of municipalities; that is to
provide services to property. That is one of the main reasons
for dwelling units.

Clause 1 agreed to

On Clause 2

‘Mr. Byblow: In the matter of dwelling units, I would be
interested in hearing from the Minister what the consideration
is with regard to the type of unit that exists on a temporary
basis. I recognize that that probably does not qualify under the
normal assessment definition of a dwelling unit, but I am refer-
ring to the type of facilities that exist around the Territory in
the.form of temporary-type bunkhouses - temporary meaning
over several years, that kind of temporary. They are units
which would fit the qualification of (a) and (c) but then we have
(b) which can exclude certain groupings of dwelling units. I
guess what I am generally asking is: where do bunkhouses fit
in; where do temporary quarters fit in?

Then thirdly, what do you intend to exclude, by regulatlon in
terms of dwelling units?

Hon. Mr. Lattin:. You will notice — I believe it was in the
White Paper — that we said that we would consider certain
construction camps, and that they could be moved in.

Mr. Chairman, I thirikk what we are talking about is dwellmgs
that require municipal services. So if a particular bunkhouse
requires these services, we would consider them as a dwelling
for that reason, because, again, the philosophy is that is why

-we_are getting away from the people to the dwelling units,
- because it is-actually the services to the dwelling unit that the
municipality has to provide. If they have to provide for an

.influx in some area of, say, two or three large bunkhouses that .

require a lot more services, then that is one of the things that
we recognize in this Ordinance.

Mr. Byblow: I wonder if the Mlmster could then elaborate
onwhat he means by providing services to those types of units?
It may very well be possible that, in the event of a construction

-camp located within the town or within the municipality, it
may not be hooked up to sewer and water, but it certainly takes
advantage of all the other mumcxpal services afforded in that
municipality.

I am not too clear just where the lme is gomg tobe drawn on
that type of structure.

Mr. McWilliam:. I think that Mr. Byblow s concern mdl-
cates the need for having a provision such as this, which allows
us to provide for a regulation from time totime. As the Minister
‘indicated, what we are primarily concerned about, and where
we have provided for construction camps in the case of a com-

" munity such as Faro, in Section 11 of the Ordinance, are pri-
marily those camps which have a significant impact on the
services the municipality provides. Where you have a self-
contained camp, that is the sort of thing which would have to be
looked at and dealt with specifically by regulation.

Mr. Veale: Could the Minister or the witness, Mr. Chair-
man, give some indication of an exclusion by the regulations,

. and what they would anticipate excluding from the dwellmg

unit definition?

Mr. McWilliam: I am sorry, Mr. Chairman, I did not catch
all of the question.

Mr. Veale: In the definition of dwelling umt you can ex-
cludevby regulation?
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Mr. McWilliam: That is correct, Mr. Chairman. What we
have indicated there is that where you have cases such as
self-contained construction camps, or, perhaps, a managerial
suite or something in a hotel, which would otherwise, with this
definition, be considered a dwelling unit — those may be ex-
cluded.

Mr. Byblow: At some point earlier, the Minister I belleve,
or perhaps it was the witness, said that the criterion or the
basis for the number of dwelling units in any location was the
assessment figures. I just need a charification on what those
figures actually are; where are they compiled, and by whom?

Hon.Mr.Lattin: Every year in any municipality there is an
assessment roll prepared. And from that particular assess-
ment roll which is done every year those figures are readily
available. Mr. Chairman, that is one of the other reasons why
we are going to this type, rather than a census of people which
takes place every five years.

Mr. Byblow: Okay, that is exactly what I was asking him.
So it is the assessment roll of the municipality that is updated
each year. Now in the event of new construction which has not
been included in the assessment roll of that year, will that be
just on the good graces of the municipality’s informing the
Government that there is a correction to be made to the num-
ber of dwelling upnits, et cetera? How updated, I guess is my
question, is the number of dwelling units going to be?

‘Hon. Mr. Lattin: I would say this would be every year. The
assessment roll is put out every year, and that would be the
time that you would review it and see how many dwelling units

“you have

T mean to say that I realize that there might be some come
out at other times, but you have to have some kind of a system,
and the system that we improvised at this particular time is
that we have it every year, which is when the assessment roll
would come out.

‘Mr. Byblow: The figures that will be used are taken from
the assessment roll figures that are compiled and are effective
as of December 31, but may not take into account construction
during that year, which is still going to be using municipal
services in the subsequent year for which the funding is going
to be applied.

Hon. Mr. Lattin: - Mr. Chairman, I do not know which ones
are going to use it or not; maybe the witness could elaborate on
it a little bit for us. :

Mr. McWilliam: Yes, that is the intent behind Section 11, so
that where you do have buildings that are coming on in the
midst of the year, when it does have a major impact on that
municipality, there is a provision there for them to obtam a
portion of the funding.

Clause 2 agreed to

Mr. Chairman: It is after 4:30 now. The Chair would like to
call a short recess.

Recess

Mr. Chairman: I call the Committee of the Whole back to

“order at this time.

On Clause 3

Mr. Byblow: Mr. Chairman, did you say that we are dealing
with the entire Clause 3?

'Mr. Chairman: That is true.

Clause 3 agreed to

On Clause 4

Mr. Fleming: I think I could probably have asked this ques-
tion before, too, in the other section; however, this now takes in
the community clubs and situations like that. Just what is the
criterion there? Is there any change in that at all, where they
gave the grant in lieu of taxes before?

Mr. McWilliam: This only deals with grants in lieu on
territorial properties. This is not related to community clubs or
federal properties, which are handled separately.

" Mr.Veale: Perhaps the Minister or the witness, Mr. Chair-
‘man, could advise why the word “may”’ is used in the last line?
It would seem to me that the word “shall’’ would be more
appropriate.
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Mr. McWilllam:- That relates directly back to Section 3,
where it says that the Commissioner may pay a grant in lieu. It
is just being consistent.

Clause 4 agreed to

On Clause 5

Mr. Fleming: Probably this would cover that. What I was
asking was: has there been any change in that system, of a
grant in lieu of taxes to a municipality or whoever is in charge
of the clubs?

Mr. McWilliam: No, Mr Chairman, this does not change the
situation relating to commumty club property

Clause 5 agreed to

On Clause 6

Clause 6-agreed to -

On Clause 7 : ‘

Mr. Penikett: Mr. Chalrman I have a couple of general
questions I want to ask here. If the Minister wants to defer
answering them until we get to Clause 8 and to other sections
later on, I would respect that but because the clauses are
linked, I want to start to ask the questlon now.

It says, in Clause 7:

“The Commissioner may pay, to each municipality, in each
‘year, a municipal operating grant in an amount calculated :

pursuant to Sections 8 to 11.”

Now, the calculation pursuant to Sectlons 8tollI. would
assume refers to the standard tax rate which is going to be
established. As I understand the standard tax rate, that would
be the tax rate which the Commissioner establishes, which is
sort of bench mark. If you make expenditures less than that, if
you keep your tax rate lower than that, vis-a-vis the level of
expenditures, you will not get certain kinds of grants; if you go
over that thing for-certain purposes, you will get the grants.

But, it seems to me, that the formula — because it is a
standard rate throughout the Territory and it is probable that
there are going to be marginally higher unit costs for any kind
of service in a smaller community — that the standard rate is
always going to be higher than the tax rate in Whitehorse,
which would mean — and perhaps the Minister could correct
me if I am wrong — that, because of that, there are certain
kinds of grants that Whitehorse would not be benefiting from,
because its rate would always be below that standard rate.

Mr. McWilliam: Yes, Mr. Chairman, there are a number
of questions there, and I will attempt to answer them.

The first one, dealing with the standard tax rate that is set;
that'is the standard tax rate that is set for the calculation of this
grant only. It does not relate to the tax rate which that munici-
pality may decide to set for its total operation. It is strlctly for
the purposes of calculating this grant.

In terms of how it relates to individual municipalities, that is
the reason why, in section 8, we have broken the Municipal
Operating Grant into two components. There is the initial one,
which is the basic operating grant, which attempts to equalize
communities: to recognize that there are the small communi-
ties where they have these higher costs, due to the limited
number of people that they stlll have to provxde the same
service to.

And then subsection 3, which provides that once the equaliza-
tion has been applied, there is additional funding availableon a
dwelling unit basis, so that the larger municipalities then get
their share that way.

Mr. Graham: Well, I am kind of curious as to how the stan-
dard tax rate is going to be set.

Mr. McWiliam: The standard tax rate would be set as it
indicates in here, by Cabinet. It is something that would be
prescribed on a yearly basis. The suggestion that the White
Paper works with, and to demonstrate how these calculations
can be worked out, was using .70 as a tax rate. That tax rate
would ensure that all the communities are receiving at least as
much funding under the new program as they do currently.

Mr. Grakam: Then it bears no relation to the present ter-
ritorial tax rate that has been established.

Mr. McWilliam: If is not directly related, Mr. Chalrman
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Mr. Penikett: - Mr. Chairman, I understand the equalization
principle, and I understand the second part, the dwelling, in its
principle as enumerated by the witness, and equalization in
these things is a desirable goal. But in any equalization there is
some give and there is some take. Am I to understand that the
principle giver under this arrangement would of necessity
have to be Whitehorse?

Mr. McWilliam: I would suggest that because of the amount
which the initial fund is set at, that there is no community
which could be looked upon as being the giver. The fund has
been set large enough so that there is sufficient funding there
for all the communities to benefit substantially.

Interms of how it would relate, certainly there are communi-

ties such as Whitehorse and Faro, in terms of basic operating

grants, that would get considerably less than other communi-
ties, such as Dawson or any of the current LID’s. But the basic

. fund is set at a level where no commumty is suffering for the

others.

Mr. Penikett: : I understand that and I understand that I
perhaps am not asking easy questlons to the Minister for the
witness. /

It becomes a pollcy pomt which one might at another time
argue with the Minister about, where the money comes from in
the first place, anyway. It is obviously going to come from the
same pockets and, to that extent, I am sure the citizens of
Whitehorse would always be as generous as they need to be.

What I am interested in — :

Some Member: Unintelligible ;

Mr. Chairman: Proceed, Mr. Penikett.

Mr. Penikett: Mr. Chairman, I hope I am not making a
provocative point. I am only stating what I think is fair.

What I am concerned about is: we know the initial funding,
the start-up funding does deal with the problem, provides, if
you like, theimpetus to initiate the equalization. However, if
you imbed in law an equalization principle, you do have, on a
long term basis, some need to have a giver and taker in an
equalization formula. I just want to get some idea about how
far that is thought ahead and is that the underlying assumption
behind this particular part of the program, that, in fact, for this
purpose in:the long run, that Whitehorse is obviously going to
be:below the benchmark and other communities, for very
understandable reasons, are going to continue to be above it.

‘Mr. McWilliam: I would suggest that in terms of the long
term approach, we attempted to ensure with the indexing pro-
visions that the formula would never get - to the point where
some community is suffering to provide funding to others.

Also, what is attempted here is to allow those communities
which can-afford to pay, through their higher assessments, —
that was a recognized principle which the Association of Yukon
Communities has already supported — that certain communi-
ties such as Whitehorse and Faro, with substantially higher
assessments, are picking up a large portion of their own costs.

Mr. Graham:. Mr. Chairman; I am just kind of curious if we
have given ourselves, within this ordinance, the ability at some
time to vary that standard tax rate, say, between various
communities within the Yukon Territory? For instance, at
some point in time, could the community of Carmacks be given
a standard tax rate of .8 and the community of Whitehorse .5?

Mr. McWilliam: -The legislation requires that the Commis-
sioner prescribe the standard tax rate. It does not specifically
indicate that you would do it on a class basis or universally. The
intention that we were working with was to try to apply it
universally as part of the pr1ncxple of those who can afford to
pay, contribute.

Mr. Penikett: IfIcould, I would like to follow up very brief-
ly on the question originally asked by ‘Mr. Graham about the
formula. I have read the White Paper, and I think I understand
the method by which you will come up with some of the num-
bers, but for the record I wonder if the Minister would be
prepared to indicate if the calculation referred to in 7(1) is
going to be the one in the White Paper; if, in fact, that or some
similar formula is the calculation you would expect the Com-
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missioner to use from here on in on a regular basis, in estab-
lishing the standard tax rate.

Mr. McWilam: If I understand the question correctly, the
answer would be no. What we would be doing is working with
all of the communities, in the preparation of the detailed reg-
ulations. We certainly do not look at the dollars that are in here
as being a cut and dried matter. In terms of the direction that
we would go in, that has been established by legislation: we

“would be providing operating grants, separate from condition-
al service grants, and our operating grants would be divided
into two components — the basic operating grant to equalize,
and then the grant based on a dwelling unit basis.

Mr. Penikett: [ appreciate what the witness is telling us.
However, he is indicating a process which he will understand is
not entirely detailed in the legislation. Perhaps it does not need
to be, but could I just get from him, for the record, an under-
standing, given what we have been told in the White Paper and
given what he has just said about consultation about the reg-
ulations, as to the kind of steps that will be followed in formmg
or making this calculation?

Mr. McWilliam: In terms of the steps that I would foresee
from the department’s point of view, the first thing is that, with
our Minister’s blessing, we would sit down with the Association
of Yukon Communities and work out the detailed regulations.
As part of the process of bringing in the new municipal legisla-
tion and the proposed Municipal Finance Ordinance, we intend
to go around to every community during May and June, hold
detailed community discussions on the implications of that
legislation for them, and get some feedback. That way we will
be in a position to prepare the regulations in time for April of
1982.

_ Mr. Byblow: Just referrmg back to the standard tax rate, I
recognize that it is only a percentage used from which to estab-
lish a base. But I am wondering, from the witness, if part of the
reasoning behind that figure is not the argument that that is the
basic tax rate that a community ought to be able to pay?

" Mr. McWilliam: Yes, Mr. Chairman. To a certain extent,
what we are indicating is that that is the tax rate which a
municipality would have to have, in order to provide those
municipal services. If they can provide them for less, or if they
want to provide additional services, it is the municipality that
sets its tax rate.

Mr. Byblow: And quite similarly, in 8(1), the equalization
.process is brought further to bear by the application of dwell-

ing units. In the municipality which is a larger one, they have a
greater advantage by the number of dwelling units, because
the unit cost is brought down. So, in terms of the equalizing
factor, while it may be disadvantageous on the application of
the standard tax rate, it is advantageous to the large munici-
pality because of the dwelling unit application.

Mr. McWilliam: [ am not really sureif there wasa questlon
there or not. But if youlook at the calculations that were done in
the White Paper, dealing with how standard expenditures per
class could be calculated, it becomes quite obvious that in the
larger communities they are definitely reaping a benefit from
the economies of scale.

Mr, Penikett: That brings me to my own exact question,

‘now that Mr. McWilliam has referred to economies of scale. It
seems to me, and is it not correct, that the formula being talked
about here and the standard tax rate is in some sense based on

. the assumption that the unit costs for certain kinds of services

are the same throughout the Territory?

Mr. McWilliam: Yes, Mr. Chairman, there certamly is an
assumption that there are costs related to the provision of
municipal services which a municipality cannot avoid. For
example, you need a fire truck, irrespective of whether your
population is 300 or 3,000, so those basic costs are there.

Mr. Penikett: Well let me just diverge for a moment, Mr.
Chairman, because I think, as I understood Mr. Byblow’s ques-
tion, it was to do with other kinds of services. Could the witness
tell us, based on the experience of the Department, whether the
unit cost of providing some of the harder municipal services
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does in fact vary greatly from community to community, and
whether experience suggests that the unit costs are much low-
er in Whitehorse?

Mr. McWilliam: Yes, Mr. Chairman, certainly from our
studies it would be borne out that the larger communities, such
as Whitehorse, have very attractive operating costs because of
the larger numbers. I would point out that a number of the
“harder”’ services that you refer to are those items that are
also dealt with as muncipal services.

Clause 7 agreed to

On Clause 8 :

Mr. Veale: Mr. Chairman, just a question for the witness:
would he explain the purpose of Clause 8 in terms of why it
appears to put a cap on municipal funding? I am not clear on
why it should be there or what the purpose of it is.

Mr. Chairman: Excuse me. You mustrefer your comments
to the Minister responsible.

Mr, Veale: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. They are referred to
the Minister. He always refers them to the witness. And
secondly, Mr. Minister, I would like to have him run through
the example in the White Paper as to how that applies in a
particular community.

Mr. McWiltiam: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I belleve that
the “‘cap’’ that Mr. Veale is referring to is the limit which would
be imposed automatically under subsection (1), where, if a
muncipality has sufficient tax revenue to offset its operating
costs, that they would not be eligible for the basic operating
grant. That, I think, is reflected in the White Paper, where, if
you note, using the standard tax rate, Whitehorse can achieve
a tax revenue in excess of its total standard expenditures. I

~ think one comparison that is very dramatic is between Dawson

and Faro. Dawson, with 407 dwellings; Faro having approx-
imately 100 more; Dawson’s standard expenditure is roughly
$100,000 less than Faro’s, and yet, having an assessment base
which is approximately half of Faro’s. When those factors are
taken into consideration,the basic operating grant reflects
that, and the City of Dawson would receive a considerably
higher operating grant than the Town of Faro.

" Clause 8 agreed to

On Clause 9

Mr. Byblow: I do not understand section 2.

Hon. Mr. Lattin: I am sorry, I did not catch which sectlon
you do not understand, Mr. Byblow. -

Mr. Chairman: We are on Clause 9, there is no section 2 in
there.

Mr. Byblow: My question pertained to Clause 8(2).

Mr. Chalrman: The clause has already been carried. We
are now considering Clause 9.

Mr. Byblow: Unanimous consent?

Mr. Chairman: Does the Member have unanimous consent
to re-open Clause 8?

Some Members: Agreed.

On Clause 8

. Mr. Byblow: I am simply seeking an explanation of the
taxable reference to a grant in lieu.

Mr. McWilliam: That provision is there so that those Gov-
ernment properties which are non-taxable are included in the
calculation of the assessment base. Essentially what we are
doing is recognizing that the municipality provide services to
the senior Government institutions as well and therefore
should receive some compensation back for them.

Mr. Byblow: So it simply means that properties falling
under the category of grant in lieu are applied in the assess-
ment for calculation.

Hon. Mr. Lattin: That is correct, Mr. Chairman.

Clause 8 agreed to

On Clause 9

Clause 9 agreed to

On Clause 10

Mr. Veale: Mr. Chairman, it appears to me that there is a
typo in subsection (2). Surely the tax rate that it i is referring to
is in 1(c) not 1(b).
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Hon. Mr. Lattin: That would appear to me to be correct,
Mr. Chairman.
.Mr. Chairman: Unanlmous consent that that i isa typo? -
Members: Agreed.
Clause 10 agreed to
. On Clause 11 - )
. Clause 11 agreed to
On Clause 12

Mr.Veale: Mr.Chairman,I would just like to ask the Mlnls- .
ter why it is the lesser of the rate of increase to total revenues -
or expenditures? What is the reason for it bemg the lesser of -

those two?

.Hon. Mr. Pearson: Mr. Chairman, I wondér if I might
attempt to answer this? This, of course, Mr. Chairman, is:the
section that I was referring to in my earlier remarks. This sets
the tone as to how this fund might grow or shrink.

. .Mr. Chairman, we, on this side, felt that we should try to tie it
to something in respect to what happens in this Government;

... however, Mr. Chairman, if we tie it to reVenue only, then the
i~ .Cabinet can, to a large degree, determine what the revenue of
' .- this Territory is going to be in any given year and may well

decide to deficit finance, to deficit budget, like we did 1ast year.

If we put together a budget with a $3 million or $4 million -
~-deficit in it, we would not have to raise as much revenue in the
. Territory. As a consequence, in spite of our expenditures going

up; we would not raise the revenue and therefore the munlclpa-

- lities would.suffer.
.+ Conversely, if we do not tie it somehow to expendltures as
- the inflation goes up, because our expenditures have a direct
.-relationship to inflation generally, then we would not have that

factor built in.

co . Wefelt, Mr. Chalrman that it was not fair to the municipali- '
: t1es to say-to them that because this Government might chose,

for any reason, political or whatever,-to deficit finance or

-surplus budget for a year, municipalities should not be re-
+ quired to follow along

What, in fact, is the safest and surest indicator of what is
happening in the Territory, Mr. Chairman, is tying to the lesser
of either our expenditures or our revenue and then it does not
matter, whichever one is involved at that point, it is the true
figure.

Myr. Veale: Perhaps I do not understand l_t, Mr. Chairman.
It would seem to me that if it‘is tied to the lesser, the Govern-
ment may have quite a rate of increase in revenue, but may
decide not to increase expenditures. The result-then is that the
municipalities have to accept the rate of increase in expendi-
tures, which may be nothing at all. It seems to me to be exactly
the opposite of what the Government Leader was saying.

Hon. Mr. Pearson: Mr. Chairman, you must remember
now, we are dealing with the difference: with the change. The

" change from one year to the next is the proposed change to this

fund from one year to the next.

Mr. Chairman, there is absolutely no way. that th1s Govem-
ment can arbitrarily decide. We can decide to hold expendi-
tures down as much we possibly can. If we are doing that, then
every municipality in the Territory should do it as well; that is
what we are saying. .

There is an uncontrollable factor that we must recognize:

expenditures in government do increase every year, no matter
how much we would like to hold them down. It is uncontroll- -
able, and that uncontrollable factoris the one that we want to -

make sure is recognized in the municipalities. That is a num-
ber that has not been recognized in the past. There has never

been any change to the municipal grants It was locked into

those firm figures before.
Mr.Veale: Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the statement of the

Government Leader, because it does make clear that munici- -

palities are not automatically going to benefit from an increase
in revenue in this Territory; it is not an automatic thing at all.
In fact, if the Government wishes to hold the line on expendi-
tures, all the municipalities are going to hold the line. My

concern would be that if that were to result, we could end up .
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back at square one, in that municipalities may, for one reason
or another, have a tremendous increase in their operating
costs, services.of sewer or garbage or whatever, that the Gov-

-ernment does not have. Consequently, the Government may

wish tohold the line, where municipalities are all in exactly the
opposite frame of mind.

- Hom. Mr. Pearson: - Mr. 'Chalrman, if you will, the Honour-

able-Member has brought up a specific point, and I know that
the ‘witness can answer that specific point. I know that that

-factor is built in, and if you will allow the witness to answer that

point I think it will clear something up for us.
Mr. McWilliam: I believe, speaking from the point of view

'of having some knowledge about municipal administration,

that what.this concept does by tying it to the two, the expendi-

-tures:and revenues, will result in some evening out of what

would otherwise be substantial peaks, and corresponding

.drops, in the level of funding they would get. It will certainly

allow them to have considerably more assurance as to what

- would be the increase in the level of funding they would receive

yearly. The point being made about territorial expenditures is
that they reflect the general Yukon economy, and I would

-suggest that if there is a realistic opportunity to hold the line

there, then the municipalities can probably do the same.
There are also a number of factors which are not included in
this Municipal Operating Grant Program which have been

‘ identif_ied. The specific items that Mr. Veale identifed, such as
_increases in sewer costs or garbage costs — for example, if

there was a substantial increase in those, we would be looking
at conditional deficit funding. As to garbage costs, municipali-
ties have opportunities there to take a look at other sources of
funding, such as user-pay.

So, I think it is important to recognize that what this principle

.does is provide a method whereby the fund is indexed, and it
- increases at' a relatively stable rate: not very radically, as

would be the case with either revenue or expenditure alone.
Mr. Byblow: In the application of a changed status in fund-
ing of the basic available money in the pot, that would be
applied to the formula to determine the dwelling unit cost in the
supplementary grant per dwelling financing, is that correct?
Mr. McWilllam: Yes, that is correct. The fund is indexed so
that, for future years, the amount of the fund will be increased,

.. and that will be reflected in the municipal operating grants.

Mr. Veale: Mr. Chairman, I would just ask the Minister

- why the word “may’’ is used again in this circumstance, and

why would it not be appropriate to put in the word ‘‘shall”’ so
that mumcnpalltles are assured that it is going to occur each
year?

* 'Hom.Mr. Pearson: . Mr. Chairman, if the word “‘shall’’ was

~. used, this would be a money bill. This legislation, Mr. Chair-

man, allows the Government to enter into these kinds of agree-
ments: It is the mechanism. The ‘‘shall’’ part, Mr. Chairman,
comes about when we vote the money in the House :

~. Clause 12 agreed_ to

On Clause 13

Clause 13 agreed to

On Clause 14

Clause 14 agreed to

Mr, Graham: Mr. Chairman, I move that you report prog-
ress on Bill Number 19 and beg leave to sit again.
. 'Mr. Chalrman: It has been moved by the Honourable Mr.

‘Graham that Mr. Chairman do now report progress on Bill

Number 19 and beg leave to sit again.
" Motion agreed to

Mr. Graham: Mr. Chalrman I move that Mr. Speaker do
now resume the Chair.

Mr. Chairman: It has been moved by the Honourable Mr.

-~ Graham that Mr. Speaker do.now resume the Chair.

- Motion agreed to .
. Mr. Chairman: 1 would like to thank and dismiss the wit-
ness at this time. -

Mr. Speaker resumes the Chair

Mr. Speaker: 1 will now call the House to order.
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May we have a report of the Chairman of Commitees?

Ms. Njoodli: Yes, Mr. Speaker. The Committee of the Whole
has considered the following bill and directed me to report the
same with amendment, including an amendment to the title,
which now reads, Bill Number 15, School Trespass Ordinance.

Further, the Committee has considered the following bill and
directed me to report the same without amendment: Bill Num-
ber 18, An Ordinance to Amend the Pioneer Utility Grant Ordi-
nance.

Further, the Committee considered the following bill and
directed me to report progress on same and beg leave to sit
again: Bill Number 19, Municipal Finance Ordinance.

Mr. Speaker: Youhave heard the report of the Chairman of
Commitees. Are you agreed.

Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Speaker: Leave is so granted.

May I have your further pleasure? '

Mr. Graham: Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Member for Mayo, that we do now adjourn. :

" Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable Mem-
ber for Whitehorse Porter Creek West, seconded by the Hdn-
ourable Member for Mayo, that we do now adjourn.

" "Motion agreed to

Mr. Speaker: This House now stands adjourned until 1:30
p.-m. tomorrow.

The House adjourned at 5:25 p.m.

The following Sessional Papers were tabled Tuesday,
April 14, 1981:

81-4-19
White Paper: Pharmacare for Senior Citizens

81-4-20

Eighth Report of the Standing Committee on Rules, Elec-
tions and Privileges
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